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F E D E R A L R E A LT Y I N V E S T M E N T T R U S T

FEDERAL REALTY is a self-administered equity real estate investment trust (REIT) specializing in

the acquisition, development, redevelopment and operation of high-quality retail and mixed-use properties.
At year-end 2000, the Trust owned or had an interest in 154 properties. This portfolio consists of community shopping centers, and retail and mixed-use properties located in major metropolitan markets
across the United States.
Federal Realty has paid quarterly dividends to its shareholders since its founding in 1962 and has
increased its dividend for each of the last 33 consecutive years. Shares of the Trust are traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol: FRT.

total real
estate assets

occupancy

funds from
operations

rental income

(per share)

(in millions)

(in millions)

$1,855

$2.56

96% 96% 96% 96%

net operating
income
(including interest
income, in millions)

$261

94%

$246
$2.38

$1,721

$222

$2.16

$196
$189

$1,642

$166

$165

$2.05

$1,454

$186

$142

$1.94
$1,148

96 97 98 99 00

$122

96 97 98 99 00

96 97 98 99 00

96 97 98 99 00
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financial highlights
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Real Estate Owned at Cost
Revenues
Funds from Operations

*

Dividends Paid Per Share

2000

1999

1998

1997

$1,854,913

$1,721,459

$1,642,136

$1,453,639

$1,147,865

279,281

264,713

238,478

204,271

179,055

102,173

96,795

86,536

79,733

65,254

1.82

1.77

1.73

1.69

1.65

*Defined as income before depreciation and amortization of real estate assets and before
extraordinary items and significant non-recurring events less gain on sale of real estate.
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Dear Shareholders

As the year 2000 brought with it the hope and
opportunities associated with the new millennium, Federal Realty embarked on an exciting
rebirth of its own—a new chapter in its long history. 2000 was the year that the Trust took all of
its collective knowledge and experience gained
during the past 40 years and broke ground on a
new vision of retail and residential development.
After three years of master planning and entitlement work, we have begun the creation of
Santana Row, our flagship development opportunity in San Jose, California. We describe this
unique project to you in detail beginning on page
six. But first, I need to put this development into
perspective because, although we are beginning
a new era for Federal Realty, we are building on
a rock-solid foundation created over the past
four decades.
Federal Realty began its life in 1962 as an owner
of suburban multi-family and shopping center
assets. In the 1970s, the opportunity to sell the
residential assets at significant profits availed
itself due to a wave of condominium conversions that were occurring. We exited the residential business (keeping Rollingwood
Apartments, which has been a spectacular per-

former, to remind us of our roots) and shifted our
focus exclusively to retail.
During the 1980s and 1990s, while others were
acquiring and developing new shopping centers,
our acquisition criteria targeted older established
properties in close-in suburbs. These urban areas
tend to be more affluent, and most importantly,
the barriers to entry are substantial as zoning is
more restrictive and land is not readily available
for competitors to build. This early focus on superior demographics was unique and we found
excellent opportunities to acquire some of the
best shopping center assets in the country where
value creation opportunities had not been fully
exploited. Our strategy was simple: protect the
downside, only invest capital where we had the
chance to create significant value, and seek to
ensure that our cash flow would increase each
and every year, even during difficult economic
times. We are proud of our accomplishments in
this regard, and believe we have accumulated the
most productive, highest quality shopping center
portfolio in the country today. As a result of consistently higher earnings, we have been able to
increase our dividend payments to you each and
every year for the past 33 years.

STABILITY

SHOPPING CENTERS

strong
tenant sales
(per square foot)

$308

$237

$199
$185

Federal(1) Neighborhood Regional
Realty & Community
Malls(2)
Centers(2)

Super
Regional
Malls(2)

(1)

1999 Average sales per square foot of reporting tenants.

(2)

Source; National Research Bureau 1999 Census,
National Average Sales per square foot.

Proof of the superior productivity of our shopping
center portfolio can be found in the chart to the
left. If one compares the sales per square foot that
reporting tenants in our centers achieve with what
the average shopping center produces, it is clear
that our portfolio is unique.
As we continued to build our shopping center portfolio, we began to detect changes in the retail landscape, specifically, the proliferation of “big-box”
centers. We shied away from this new trend, and
we are happy that we did. Net operating income
growth from big-box “powercenters” has been
anemic, as oversupply and the consolidation of
large-format retailers have changed the supply and
demand dynamics. Instead, we decided to become
even more selective, once again focusing on the
strongest retail and demographic markets.
In 1994, we created a second company, Street
Retail, Inc., under the Federal Realty umbrella. Our
goal was to acquire retail properties that were in
even more supply-constrained markets than our
shopping centers. We targeted the original main
streets of some of the most affluent, close-in, suburban markets in the country such as Greenwich,
Connecticut, Bethesda, Maryland and Santa
Monica, California.
Our investment strategy was based on two
beliefs. First, retailers were looking for new venues to expand where they could achieve efficient
distribution of their product with very high sales
per foot at competitive costs of occupancy. We
believed retailers would look increasingly to the
supply-constrained, pedestrian-oriented “main
streets” that were closer to their target consumers.
We believed that as more retailers sought space
in these supply-constrained markets, rents would
increase dramatically with the increase in demand.
Two examples prove that our investment strategy
was correct: In Bethesda, Maryland, where we
own seven city blocks, market rents have nearly
doubled in just a four-year time span. Across the
country in Santa Monica, California, where we are
the largest landlord on Third Street Promenade,
one of the most vibrant main streets in America,
market rents have increased more than 100% in the
same period. By comparison, market rents during the
same four year period in most suburban shopping
center markets have only kept pace with inflation.
Our second belief was that consumer preferences
for an experience that was more urban, outdoors
and provided a social element would help boost
sales and, in turn, attract even more retailers to
2

these types of locations. This has proven to be
true, as retailers are increasingly targeting main
streets for their new stores.
In the mid-1990s, we began acquiring individual
buildings on some of the best retail streets in the
country, and today we are the dominant landlord on
many of these streets with investments in 96 retail
and mixed-use properties. Initially, we purchased
only individual buildings or blocks where we could
add value through renovation, remerchandising and
redevelopment. As rents and prices for these properties started to rise, we knew we were onto
something. We sought to capitalize on our success
by focusing on larger opportunities to create and
control entire urban districts. We pursued opportunities to utilize all of our experience to create irreplaceable assets with great long-term potential. As
we began to acquire land or entire blocks, such as
the 18 acres adjacent to the Fashion Centre at
Pentagon City or the 42 acres that are becoming
Santana Row, we began to plan a different type of
development. While other developers started building “entertainment” into their properties by adding
24-screen movie theaters or other trendy entertainment retailers, we sought to create fun and interest
in a more lasting way. Capitalizing on our experience
in shopping center renovation, we added places
to sit and gather, fountains, curbside landscaping,
wider sidewalks and then, most importantly, we
brought together a combination of one-of-a-kind
boutiques, service-oriented tenants, destination
oriented national and regional tenants and wonderful local restaurants with outdoor cafe seating.
Returning to our roots, we are adding unique residential living opportunities into these developments. We have already seen evidence in our
residential units in Westport, Greenwich and
Manayunk that many people prefer main street
living and will pay a premium to live there. We are
creating this product for one reason only: a deepseated belief, borne out by quantitative facts, that
residential rental growth in select urban and suburban locations will be strong and sustainable resulting in real estate of increasing market value.
As we move forward, we are focused on creating
urban, mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly communities.
We have been inundated with many opportunities
as our particular expertise and focus is exactly what
many cities around the country are seeking. But we
remain extraordinarily selective. Each one of our
developments is unique as it truly caters to the
needs of the people who surround it and meets our
requirements to create sustainable long-term value.

We believe the extra effort in building these communities is worth it. These are assets that are truly
irreplaceable. They meet all of our investment criteria. They protect the downside, have the chance to
create significant value and seek to assure that our
cash flow will increase each year. These are not
“cookie cutter” developments that fit an established format. They are not regional malls, nor are
they suburban multi-family developments. As our
first phase of Santana Row opens throughout 2002,
and Pentagon Row and Bethesda Row enjoy their
first fully open years in 2002, it should become very
apparent that we have created something of great
value, now and for the future.
We are proud of the combined results of our shopping
center and street retail businesses. We have experienced consistent growth in funds from operations and
in dividends per share over a very long period of time.
We prospered through the real estate depression and
economic recession of 1990 to 1992.
As we go to press, growth in the economy has
slowed dramatically and the impact and extent of
this slowdown on our business is unclear. We are
cognizant that a major development such as
Santana Row clearly gives us greater exposure to
the impact of a recession, and it is likely that a sustained period of economic uncertainty will negatively
affect our results in the short term. At the same
time we remain convinced that our development
plans for Santana Row represent a unique opportunity to create long-term value for our shareholders.
We are fully committed to achieving that goal.
Our focus in 2001 is to enhance net asset value,
profitably execute our development pipeline, and

effectively manage and match our balance sheet
and capital resources with our two businesses.
The following pages highlight some of the specific
achievements of 2000. As our developments take
shape, we are hopeful that Wall Street will
recognize the inherent underlying value that we
are creating and close the gap between that value
and our share price.
In February 2001, Don Wood was appointed
President and Chief Operating Officer, and I assumed
the position of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Don’s remarkable energy and intellect make him an
extraordinary leader. In his relatively short tenure, he
has made significant contributions in all aspects of
our business and we are confident that under his
leadership, we will make great progress in our
efforts to maximize shareholder value.
In closing, I want to thank our dedicated Board of
Trustees and our hard working team of employees.
My sincere thanks go to Arthur Cornet who retired
from our Board last year after serving 17 years. His
spirited enthusiasm, great wisdom and international
perspective provided Federal Realty with valuable
counsel and support over the years.
We are enthusiastic about the value that we are
creating and thank you for your continued support.

Steven J. Guttman
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

(left to right)

Donald C. Wood
President &
Chief Operating Officer

Steven J. Guttman
Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer

Ron D. Kaplan
Senior Vice President &
Chief Investment Officer
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growth

Federal Realty was early to recognize the growing trend of consumers
and retailers alike seeking the convenience, versatility and vitality
of urban main streets.
Federal Realty actively identified and acquired retail buildings in main
street shopping areas across the United States, and today we are the
largest investor and owner of real estate on some of the country’s
most popular shopping streets, including Greenwich Avenue in
Greenwich, Connecticut; Third Street Promenade in Santa Monica,
California; Old Town in Los Gatos, California and Main Street,
Gaslamp Quarter
San Diego, CA

Manayunk, in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Over the past six years,
Federal Realty has amassed a main street portfolio containing 66 properties with almost 2.8 million square feet of retail, office and residential
space. In addition, the Trust participates in the results of an additional 30
properties through convertible participating mortgages. The Trust’s
owned and operating main street portfolio is currently 97% occupied and, during the past four years, average rents per square
foot have significantly grown, with leases rolling over at
an average annual increase of 25%.
Federal Realty’s strategic plan is to develop
pedestrian-friendly, urban, mixed-use communities that fuse shopping, living, working
and entertainment in innovative new
ways, and the Trust has gained national
recognition for both its main street revitalization and value-added urban devel-

Greenwich Avenue
Greenwich, CT

opment programs. Currently, the Trust
has almost one million square feet of
retail and office space and 501 residential units under development.
The Trust’s main street portfolio contains over $500 million of operating real
estate assets at cost, producing revenues
of $79 million and net operating income,
which includes interest income, of $54 million.
With the completion of its current development
pipeline, total assets will top $1.1 billion.

4
Third Street Promenade
Santa Monica, CA

Bethesda Row

Woodmont East represents the fourth

phase of Federal Realty’s multi-phased, mixed-use development at Bethesda Row in Bethesda, Maryland. The newly
constructed 130,000 square foot building includes 78,000
square feet of office space above 52,000 square feet of retail
and restaurant space. As of December 31, 2000, Federal
Realty had leased 100% of Woodmont East’s office space.
Retail tenants include the popular restaurants Jaleo and Xando
Cosi, and retailers Bang & Olufsen, Georgetown Opticians and
Cecile Jeanne-Paris.
As with the Trust’s previous three phases, Federal Realty
remains committed to enhancing downtown Bethesda
through mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly developments such
as Woodmont East. Upon stabilization, expected later this
year, approximately $77 million will be invested in Phases I-IV
of our Bethesda Row community at an 11% return on capital.
The Trust will be developing additional phases of Bethesda
Row in the future to maximize value to the Trust’s shareholders and the Bethesda community.

Pentagon Row

Construction is progressing at our

Pentagon Row development in Arlington, Virginia. This
property will contain 300,000 square feet of street-level
shopping and restaurants beneath more than 500 midrise luxury apartments which were master planned by
Federal Realty.
Pentagon Row, designed to serve the area’s growing community, will feature a synergistic mix of destination stores,
specialty and convenience shops and innovative restaurants. The diverse mix of retail and restaurant concepts will
complement the strong base of destination stores that
include a Harris Teeter grocery store, Bed, Bath & Beyond,
Hudson Trail Outfitters and Bally Total Fitness. Pentagon
Row is illustrative of Federal Realty’s commitment to developing urban, mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly communities.
This $74 million development is presently 90% pre-leased
and is expected to generate a return on capital of 10.5%.
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Located in San Jose, California, Santana Row will
be the heart of Silicon Valley. Currently under construction, Santana Row is the embodiment of
Federal Realty’s vision for urban, mixed-use neighborhood development. This community will combine luxury retail, unique shops, local, regional and
ethnic restaurants and a boutique hotel, with the
most unique mix of residential rental offerings in
Silicon Valley.
This value-creation opportunity began with the
acquisition of an old shopping center in 1997. Three
years later we completed the master planning and
received entitlements to build 680,000 square feet
of retail, 1,200 residential units and a 214-room
hotel. Phase I is currently under construction and
creates the Mediterranean main street, which is
the backbone of the community. When Phase I is
complete, it will include approximately 75% of the
retail and 40% of the residential entitlement. Later
phases on 18 adjacent acres are anticipated to
include 700 residential units and approximately
140,000 square feet of retail.
Leasing is under way with executed leases for
Hotel Valencia Santana Row, a 40,000 square foot
Crate & Barrel Home Store and boutiques by
some of the world’s best known brands such as
St. John Knits, Tod’s, BCBG Max Azria and Cole Haan.
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Capitalizing on the low rental vacancy rate in Silicon
Valley, residential offerings will range from stylish urban
lofts to three-level town homes to luxury villas. Santana
Row will fill a void for upscale, high-income residents
looking for a unique living environment to call home.
Great care has been taken to create the sense that the
community is organic and has evolved over time. We
have retained several of the country’s leading architects,
each designing distinctive buildings to create a
European atmosphere.
Phase I is expected to begin generating revenue in
mid-2002 and reach stabilization during 2003. Santana
Row will provide San Jose a new gathering spot,
enhancing the community for decades to come.

THE BEST LOCAL AND REGIONAL
SHOPS AND RESTAURANTS

FARMER’S
MARKET

LANDSCAPED
PARKS AND PLAZAS

214-ROOM
BOUTIQUE HOTEL

WORLD-CLASS
BOUTIQUES AND
RESTAURANTS

SHOP-LINED
MAIN STREET

STREET-LEVEL
LIVE WORK UNITS
STYLISH URBAN LOFTS
(18 FT. CEILING)
3-LEVEL EXECUTIVE
TOWNHOMES

VALET PARKING
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MAIN STREET PORTFOLIO

S T R E E T S

assets

revenue

(in millions)

(in millions)

portfolio distribution

$79

$709
$71
$563

14%
Office

$63
77%
Retail

$474

9%
Office

9%
Residential
61%
Retail

30%
Residential

$42
$394

Percent of operating
square footage at 12/31/00

$29

$204

96 97 98 99 00

Percent of operating square footage
upon completion of development
pipeline including all phases
of Santana Row

96 97 98 99 00

VALUE CREATION
C A S E

S T U D Y

150 POST STREET

Strategic redevelopments of income producing properties
continue to be a significant focus for Federal Realty.
Redevelopments have been the hallmark of our success,
whether they are shopping center or main street properties. The objective is the same—to recognize the highest
potential value in the shortest period of time.
Federal Realty purchased 150 Post Street, located off legendary Union Square in San Francisco, in October 1997 for
$21 million at an 8.2% return on capital. Significant additional capital would be required to upgrade tenant spaces
and perform a seismic retrofit of the building; however,
potential income-enhancement opportunities from retenanting office and retail spaces were so significant that
the capital improvements were worth the investment. At
year-end 2000, we were halfway through our redevelopment and re-leasing plan. We are now generating a return
on capital of over 10% and, on average, rents in the building are still significantly below market. As leases roll over
in the next three years and Federal Realty begins to capture market rents for these spaces, we estimate that we
will have created nearly $20 million in net asset value for
our shareholders at this property.

Forest Hills
Forest Hills, NY

Main Street, Manayunk
Philadelphia, PA

MAIN STREET PORTFOLIO
N O RT H E A S T O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
Property

Number
of Properties

Location

Square Feet

Year Acquired

Occupancy

Total Cost

81,000
126,000
26,000

1995–1996
1995
1994–1995

100%
94%
100%

$29,080,000
16,096,000
10,062,000

CONNECTICUT

Greenwich Avenue
West Hartford
Westport

4
7
2

Greenwich, CT
West Hartford, CT
Westport, CT

2
1

Evanston, IL
Chicago, IL

19,000
5,000

1995
1996

100%
100%

4,260,000
4,368,000

1

Brookline, MA

13,000

1995

100%

3,988,000

1

Westfield, NJ

11,000

1995

100%

3,259,000

4
1

Forest Hills, NY
Queens, NY

91,000
410,000

1997
1997

30

Manayunk, PA

213,000

1996

ILLINOIS

Evanston
Oak Street
MASSACHUSETTS

Coolidge Corner
NEW JERSEY

Central Avenue
NEW YORK

Forest Hills
Fresh Meadows

88%(1)
97%

25,945,000
63,216,000

PENNSYLVANIA

Main Street

20,362,000(2)

M I D - AT L A N T I C O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Sam’s Park N Shop

1

Washington, DC

50,000

1995

100%

11,698,000

2

Winter Park, FL

28,000

1996

80%

6,854,000

FLORIDA

Winter Park
MARYLAND

Bethesda Row
Rollingwood Apartments

7 blocks
1

Bethesda, MD
Silver Spring, MD

331,000
282 units

1993–1998
1971

100%
100%

44,646,000
6,660,000

1
1

Charlottesville, VA
Arlington, VA

484,000
203,000

1985
1995

99%
93%

38,528,000
29,564,000

2

Tempe, AZ

40,000

1998

100%

11,023,000

2
4
1
3
1
1
9

Pasadena, CA
San Diego, CA
Hermosa Beach, CA
Hollywood, CA
Los Gatos, CA
San Francisco, CA
Santa Monica, CA

68,000
65,000
25,000
198,000
97,000
101,000
198,000

1996–1998
1996
1997
1999
1997
1997
1996–2000

92%
100%(3)
96%(3)
98%
84%
100%(3)

14,511,000
11,218,000
3,068,000
26,984,000
31,746,000
25,955,000
61,069,000

1

Portland, OR

100,000

1997

100%

16,398,000

VIRGINIA

Barracks Road
The Village at Shirlington
W E S T E R N O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
ARIZONA

Mill Avenue
CALIFORNIA

Colorado Boulevard
Fifth Avenue
Hermosa Avenue
Hollywood Boulevard
Old Town Center
Post Street
Third Street Promenade

(4)

OREGON

Uptown Properties
TEXAS

Houston Street

11

San Antonio, TX

(4)

1998

(4)

33,185,000

DEVELOPMENT IN PROGRESS

Woodmont East
Pentagon Row
Santana Row

Bethesda, MD
Arlington, VA
San Jose, CA

(1)

Occupancy is based on three occupied buildings. A fourth building is under redevelopment.

(2)

Convertible participating mortgage secured by properties.

(3)

Occupancy is based only on occupied buildings. Additional buildings are under redevelopment.

(4)

Under redevelopment.

1997
1999
1997

25,495,000
39,809,000
96,767,000
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CREATING

S H O P P I N G

STABILITY

C E N T E R S

VA L U E

Wildwood
Bethesda, MD

Federal Realty’s disciplined business strategy has always been based on owning established
neighborhood and community shopping centers in prime property locations with opportunities
to enhance value. Since our founding, the Trust has demonstrated sustainable growth and
profitability in our shopping center portfolio. At year-end 2000, shopping center assets, at cost,
approximated $1.2 billion and generated over $140 million of net operating income, which
includes interest income.
The Trust’s shopping center portfolio includes 57 shopping centers with more than 11 million
square feet of leasable space, primarily located in metropolitan Washington, D.C., Philadelphia
and northern New Jersey. These markets provide strong demographic and economic foundations and are characterized by established, densely populated communities with strong retail
demand and significant barriers to entry.
Typical centers consist of 20 to 50 stores anchored by retailers offering basic consumer necessities—supermarkets, drug stores or high-volume, value-oriented retailers. Grocery and drug
stores play a vital role in our shopping centers. These necessity-based retailers provide the
steady daily consumer traffic that is important to the success of community shopping centers.
Our reporting small shop tenants in grocery-anchored centers produced average sales per
square foot of $260, and this average excludes the extraordinarily high sales generated by the
10

grocers. Some of our centers are not anchored by a supermarket but were hand picked, asset

by asset, based on the superiority of their locations within their trade area. These unique properties average small shop sales 10% higher than our grocery-anchored properties, producing
record-setting sales exceeding $285 per square foot, reflecting the inherent value of the
underlying real estate.
Federal Realty prides itself on the diversification of its tenant base. Our tenant base is
a group of retailers who typically have strong credit standing and perform well in most
economic climates. No single tenant makes up more than 2.5% of total rents. In fact,
Federal Realty’s 10 largest tenants comprise less than 20% of total revenue.
Federal Realty differentiates itself in the depth and quality of its leasing team. As a result,
Federal Realty’s retail shopping center portfolio remains one of the best leased and most
productive in the industry, with 96% occupancy at year-end 2000. Our team re-leased over
865,000 square feet of space in 2000 at an average rental rate increase of 14%. Average
sales per square foot for our reporting tenants exceed $300—the most productive of any
publicly held neighborhood and community shopping center portfolio.
Critical to the current performance and the future growth of the Trust’s shopping center portfolio is our ability to add value to our properties. We continue to monitor every space at our
shopping centers to optimize productivity and use our expertise to enhance the merchandising mix, increase tenant sales and maintain high occupancy.

Idylwood Plaza
Falls Church, VA

S H O P P I N G

C E N T E R S

A Strong Supermarket Base A unique blend of specialty tenants coupled with
a strong anchor is the hallmark of Federal Realty’s shopping center portfolio.
While all of Federal Realty’s anchor tenants help drive our sector-leading sales,
the necessity-based nature of our grocery anchors make these retailers the

Idylwood Plaza
Falls Church, VA

bedrock of our shopping center success. Federal Realty’s portfolio contains
financially strong, market-leading grocery operators. Of those grocery anchors
that report sales, the average sales per square foot are almost $600.
While grocery anchors can provide much of the traffic necessary to make a shopping center successful, no single grocer
could successfully anchor shopping centers with the diverse
locations and demographics found in Federal Realty’s shopping center portfolio.
For this reason, Federal Realty undertakes the additional step of

Wynnewood
Wynnewood, PA

analyzing the characteristics of specific grocers
before including them in its
centers. For example,
Redner’s in Langhorne
Square fulfills the needs of
value-oriented consumers in its
market, while Sutton Place
Gourmet in Wildwood draws its
success from the affluent residents
surrounding its Bethesda, Maryland

Falls Plaza
Falls Church, VA

location. Through this analysis, the Trust
ensures that specific grocers meet the needs of the surrounding community
and can add value to the merchandising mix of the center’s small shops.
During the last four years, Federal Realty has completed re-merchandising and
renovation plans that have included the addition of seven new prototypical grocery anchors, which added over 229,000 square feet of new grocery store
space. Examples of our grocery store renovations during 2000 include:
• A brand new, state-of-the-art, 98,000 square foot Genuardi’s at Wynnewood
Shopping Center in Wynnewood, Pennsylvania
• A new 45,000 square foot Acme at Bala Cynwyd Shopping Center in

Brunswick
North Brunswick, NJ

Bala Cynwyd, Pennsylvania
• A renovated, new prototypical 55,000 square foot A&P at Brunswick
Shopping Center in North Brunswick, New Jersey
• A newly expanded 30,000 square foot Fresh Fields at Idylwood Plaza in
Falls Church, Virginia

12
Barracks Road
Charlottesville, VA

VALUE CREATION
C A S E

S T U D Y

WYNNEWOOD CENTER

The redevelopment of Wynnewood Shopping Center epitomizes the
value-creation strategy that is a hallmark of Federal Realty’s shopping
center business. Wynnewood was purchased in late 1996 for $17 million
at a 7.5% return on capital. The center, which is strategically located on
Philadelphia’s affluent “Main Line,” was viewed as a superior real estate
location whose income potential was largely untapped.
Through aggressive redevelopment and remerchandising, Federal Realty
was able to add new tenants, including Bed Bath & Beyond, Borders
Books and Music and a state-of-the-art 98,000 square foot Genuardi’s
supermarket.
At December 31, 2000, we have doubled our investment in this center to
$34 million and have increased net operating income by 350%. Our return
on capital in the year 2000 exceeded 13.5% and, with the addition of one
remaining anchor to be leased in 2001, our return is expected to exceed
16% in 2002. We believe that through our aggressive development and
remerchandising at Wynnewood, we will have created nearly $30 million
in net asset value.

SHOPPING CENTER PORTFOLIO

lease rollovers*

Year

Square Feet
Leased

2000

866,000

Increase over
Prior Rental Rate

assets

revenue

(in millions)

(in millions)

$200
$1,168

$1,158
$1,146

$194

14%

$175

$1,060

1999

819,000

18%

1998

889,000

12%

$944
$162

$150

1997

1,024,000

19%

1996

1,162,000

24%

*Comparable retail spaces.

96 97 98 99* 00*
*Reduction due to strategic
dispositions.

96 97 98 99 00

S H O P P I N G

SHOPPING CENTER PORTFOLIO

C E N T E R S

N O RT H E A S T O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
Square Feet

Year
Acquired

Occupancy

Total Cost

Bristol, CT

296,000

1995

94%

$21,338,000

Crossroads

Highland Park, IL

173,000

1993

90%

21,414,000

Finley

Downers Grove, IL

313,000

1995

83%

25,463,000

Garden Market

Western Springs, IL

134,000

1994

84%

9,935,000

North Lake Commons

Lake Zurich, IL

129,000

1994

97%

12,944,000

Dedham Plaza

Dedham, MA

250,000

1993

85%

26,972,000

Queen Anne Plaza

Norwell, MA

149,000

1994

100%

14,649,000

Saugus Plaza

Saugus, MA

171,000

1996

100%

12,970,000

Roseville, MI

218,000

1973

100%

16,642,000

Property

Location

CONNECTICUT

Bristol
ILLINOIS

MASSACHUSETTS

MICHIGAN

Gratiot Plaza
NEW JERSEY

Allwood

Clifton, NJ

52,000

1988

100%

4,262,000

Blue Star

Watchung, NJ

403,000

1988

95%

38,375,000

Brick Plaza

Brick, NJ

409,000

1989

100%

49,818,000

Brunswick

North Brunswick, NJ

285,000

1988

77%(1)

Clifton

Clifton, NJ

80,000

1988

93%

4,762,000

Ellisburg Circle

Cherry Hill, NJ

258,000

1992

94%

25,303,000

Hamilton

Hamilton, NJ

190,000

1988

100%

7,579,000

Rutgers

Franklin, NJ

216,000

1988

99%

15,817,000

Troy

Parsippany-Troy, NJ

202,000

1980

100%

20,244,000

19,317,000

NEW YORK

Greenlawn Plaza

Greenlawn, NY

92,000

2000

Hauppauge

Hauppauge, NY

131,000

1998

100%

78%(1)

10,065,000
26,160,000

Huntington

Huntington, NY

279,000

1988

100%

22,360,000

PENNSYLVANIA

Andorra

Philadelphia, PA

259,000

1988

92%

18,231,000

Bala Cynwyd

Bala Cynwyd, PA

279,000

1993

100%

23,656,000

Feasterville

Feasterville, PA

116,000

1980

89%

11,415,000

Flourtown

Flourtown, PA

191,000

1980

100%

8,433,000

Lancaster

Lancaster, PA

107,000

1980

91%

4,627,000

Langhorne Square

Levittown, PA

210,000

1985

100%

17,419,000

Lawrence Park

Broomall, PA

326,000

1980

98%

23,255,000

Northeast

Philadelphia, PA

297,000

1983

94%

21,063,000

Willow Grove

Willow Grove, PA

215,000

1984

98%

25,421,000

Wynnewood

Wynnewood, PA

257,000

1996

90%

33,866,000

(1)

Under redevelopment.
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Mid-Pike Plaza
Rockville, MD

Federal Plaza
Rockville, MD

Leesburg Plaza
Leesburg, VA

Falls Plaza
Falls Church, VA

Congressional Plaza
Rockville, MD

M I D - AT L A N T I C O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
Property

Location

Square Feet

Year
Acquired

Occupancy

Total Cost

$45,777,000

MARYLAND

Congressional Plaza

Rockville, MD

340,000

1965

100%

Courthouse Center

Rockville, MD

38,000

1997

72%

3,710,000

Federal Plaza

Rockville, MD

242,000

1989

100%

60,507,000

Gaithersburg Square

Gaithersburg, MD

208,000

1993

94%

23,146,000

Governor Plaza

Glen Burnie, MD

252,000

1985

99%

17,023,000

Laurel

Laurel, MD

386,000

1986

94%

44,592,000

Magruder’s Center

Rockville, MD

109,000

1997

100%

9,824,000

Mid-Pike Plaza

Rockville, MD

312,000

1982

91%

16,643,000

Perring Plaza

Baltimore, MD

412,000

1985

99%

23,888,000

Quince Orchard

Gaithersburg, MD

237,000

1993

100%

17,362,000

Wildwood

Bethesda, MD

85,000

1969

94%

15,572,000

Chapel Hill, NC

159,000

1986

98%

12,111,000

NORTH CAROLINA

Eastgate
VIRGINIA

Falls Plaza

Falls Church, VA

74,000

1967

100%

8,145,000

Falls Plaza–East

Falls Church, VA

71,000

1972

100%

3,345,000
14,790,000

Idylwood Plaza

Falls Church, VA

73,000

1994

100%

Leesburg Plaza

Leesburg, VA

247,000

1998

99%

19,772,000

Loehmann’s Plaza

Fairfax, VA

242,000

1983

99%

24,922,000

Old Keene Mill

Springfield, VA

92,000

1976

100%

5,041,000

Pan Am

Fairfax, VA

218,000

1993

89%

24,227,000

Pike 7

Tysons Corner, VA

164,000

1997

100%

33,055,000

Tower

Springfield, VA

109,000

1998

85%

17,835,000

Tysons Station

Falls Church, VA

50,000

1978

100%

3,133,000

Williamsburg

Williamsburg, VA

251,000

1986

97%

13,520,000

Willow Lawn

Richmond, VA

448,000

1983

89%

59,014,000

W E S T E R N O P E R AT I N G R E G I O N
CALIFORNIA

Escondido

Escondido, CA

222,000

1996

99%

24,371,000

Kings Court

Los Gatos, CA

78,000

1998

100%

10,808,000
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Financial Information

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
2000

1999

Year ended December 31,
1998

1997

1996

$260,684

$245,833

$222,186

$188,529

$164,887

56,842

55,493

44,960

40,129

28,754

3,681

(7,050)

—

6,375

(12)

Net income

60,523

48,443

44,960

46,504

28,742

Net income available for common shareholders

52,573

40,493

37,010

44,627

28,742

Net cash provided by operating activities

106,146

102,183

90,427

72,170

65,648

Net cash used in investing activities

121,741

99,313

187,646

279,343

161,819

(in thousands, except per share data)

Operating Data
Rental income
Income before gain (loss) on sale of real estate
Gain (loss) on sales of real estate

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

15,214

(8,362)

97,406

213,175

96,691

102,173

96,795

86,536

79,733

65,254

72,512

71,630

69,512

66,636

56,607

Basic

38,796

39,574

39,174

38,475

33,175

Diluted

39,910

40,638

40,080

38,988

33,573

Funds from operations
Dividends declared on common shares
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Per share:
Net income, basic

$

Net income, diluted

1.36

$

1.02

$

.94

$

1.16

$

.87

1.35

1.02

.94

1.14

.86

1.84

1.78

1.74

1.70

1.66

Real estate owned, at cost

1,854,913

1,721,459

1,642,136

1,453,639

1,147,865

Total assets

1,621,079

1,534,048

1,484,317

1,316,573

1,035,306

Dividends declared per common share

Balance Sheet Data

Mortgage and capital lease obligations

323,911

172,573

173,480

221,573

229,189

Notes payable

225,246

162,768

263,159

119,028

66,106

Senior notes

410,000

510,000

335,000

255,000

215,000

75,289

75,289

75,289

75,289

75,289

Convertible subordinated debentures
Redeemable preferred shares

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

—

Shareholders’ equity

467,654

501,827

529,947

553,810

388,885

39,469

40,201

40,080

39,148

35,886

Number of common shares outstanding

REVENUES
Year ended
December 31,

MARKET QUOTATIONS
Retail/Mixed-Use
Properties

Residential
Properties

Other

2000

96%

1%

1999

96%

1998

96%

Dividends
Paid

Total

Quarter ended

High

Low

3%

100%

1%

3%

100%

1%

3%

100%

December 31, 2000
September 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
March 31, 2000

$20
2115⁄16
225⁄16
201⁄2

$183⁄4
191⁄8
1815⁄16
173⁄4

$.47
.45
.45
.45

December 31, 1999
September 30, 1999
June 30, 1999
March 31, 1999

$2015⁄16
24
241⁄16
247⁄8

$17
20
209⁄16
201⁄4

$.45
.44
.44
.44

TAXABILITY OF DIVIDENDS
Following is the income tax status of dividends paid during the fiscal year
ended December 31,
2000
1999
1998
1997
Ordinary Income

92%

91%

82%

89%

Return of Capital

6%

9%

18%

11%

Long-Term Capital Gain

2%

—

—

—

The number of holders of record for Federal Realty’s shares of beneficial interest at
March 9, 2001 was 6,246.
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations
The Trust and its representatives may from time to time make
written or oral statements that are “forward-looking,” within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may
cause actual results, performance or achievements of the
Trust to be materially different from the results of operations
or plans expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, changes in our
business strategy; general economic and business conditions
which will affect the credit worthiness of tenants; financing
availability and cost; retailing trends and rental rates; risks of
real estate development and acquisitions, including the risk
that potential acquisitions or development projects may not
perform in accordance with expectations; our ability to satisfy
the complex rules in order to qualify for taxation as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes and to operate effectively within
the limitations imposed by these rules; government approvals,
actions and initiatives including the need for compliance with
environmental and safety requirements, and changes in laws
and regulations or the interpretation thereof; and competition
with other real estate companies and technology.
We identify forward-looking statements by using words or
phrases such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may be,” “objective,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,”
and “will be” and similar words or phrases, or the negatives
thereof or other similar variations thereof or comparable terminology. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the
results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements
that may be made to reflect any future events or circumstances.
The following discussion should be read together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto of Federal
Realty Investment Trust (the ”Trust”).
The Trust is engaged in the ownership, management,
development and redevelopment of prime retail and mixeduse properties. The Trust, which has traditionally acquired and
redeveloped strip retail shopping centers, has expanded its
investments to the development of urban mixed-used properties.
Management continually evaluates the future prospects of its
real estate portfolio, not only to identify expansion and renovation opportunities, but also to identify properties that no
longer fit the Trust’s investment criteria and therefore, should
be monetized or exchanged into other real estate assets. At
December 31, 2000 the Trust owned 123 retail properties and
one apartment complex.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Trust meets its liquidity requirements through net cash
provided by operating activities, along with traditional debt and
equity funding alternatives available to it. A significant portion
of cash provided by operating activities is distributed to common
and preferred shareholders in the form of dividends. Accordingly,
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capital outlays for property acquisitions, major renovation and
development projects and balloon debt repayments require
debt or equity funding. Proceeds from the sale of selected
assets may also provide an additional source of capital in 2001
and 2002.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $106.1 million in 2000, $102.2 million in 1999, and $90.4 million in 1998,
of which $77.5 million, $76.6 million, and $74.3 million, respectively, was distributed to shareholders. Contributions from
newly acquired properties and from retenanted and redeveloped properties, as more fully described below, were the
primary sources of these increases.
Net cash used in investing activities was $121.7 million
in 2000, $99.3 million in 1999, and $187.6 million in 1998.
The Trust acquired properties totaling $26.8 million in 2000,
$26.4 million in 1999, and $120.4 million in 1998 requiring
cash outlays of $23.6 million, $25.3 million, and $92.9 million,
respectively. During these same three years the Trust expended
an additional $145.8 million, $90.8 million, and $73.0 million
in capital improvements to its properties, of which $82.1 million in 2000, $38.7 million in 1999 and $25.0 million in 1998
related to new development. The Trust received mortgage
note repayments, net of funds invested, of $494,000 in 2000.
The Trust invested, net of loan repayments, $2.3 million, and
$21.4 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively, in mortgage
notes receivable. The average weighted stated interest rate
on these loans was 10.0% for the years 1998 through 2000.
Certain of these mortgages also participate in the gross revenues and appreciation and are convertible into ownership
interests in the properties by which they are secured. Cash
of $47.2 million in 2000 and $19.2 million in 1999 was received
from the sale of properties.
During 2000 the Trust expended cash of $23.6 million to
acquire real estate and an additional $145.8 million to improve,
redevelop and develop its existing real estate. The Trust purchased the 75,000 square foot Greenlawn Plaza in Greenlawn,
New York for $6.2 million. Control of a parcel of land for future
development in Hillsboro, Oregon was acquired for $11.7 million; an additional $1.6 million will be owed if certain cash
flow criteria are met during the first ten years of operations.
Other acquisitions include a parcel of land in Bethesda, Maryland
for $461,000; an additional property for the Trust’s Houston
Street project in San Antonio, Texas for cash of $1.2 million
and the assumption of a $345,000 mortgage; a retail building
in Santa Monica, California in satisfaction of a $5.2 million
mortgage note receivable and cash of $1.7 million; and the
$2.3 million redemption of 100,000 partnership units which
had been issued in connection with the purchase of the
Courthouse Square and Magruders Shopping Centers.
Of the $145.8 million spent in 2000 on the Trust’s existing
real estate portfolio, approximately $82.1 million was invested
in development projects in Bethesda, Maryland; San Jose,

California; and in Arlington, Virginia. The remaining $63.7 million
of capital expenditures relates to improvements to common
areas, tenant work and various redevelopments, including the
renovation of Greenlawn Plaza, the office expansion and
retenanting of Willow Lawn Shopping Center, the renovation
of Brunswick Shopping Center, and the redevelopment of
retail buildings in Forest Hills, New York, San Antonio, Texas
and southern California.
The Trust, which held the 1% general partnership interest,
obtained an additional 98% general partnership interest in the
future operations of Loehmann’s Plaza. The minority partner
received 190,000 partnership units valued at $3.6 million and
the satisfaction of amounts due the Trust from the partnership.
Peninsula Shopping Center in Palos Verdes, California
was sold in June 2000 for $48.6 million, resulting in a gain
of $3.7 million.
Net cash provided by financing activities, before dividend
payments, was $92.7 million in 2000, $68.3 million in 1999,
and $171.7 million in 1998. The Trust utilized the proceeds
from the sale of Peninsula Shopping Center and its syndicated
credit facility to fund acquisitions, most capital expenditures,
share repurchases and balloon debt repayments.
On February 29, 2000, the Trust obtained a construction
loan for up to $24.5 million in connection with the Trust’s
Woodmont East development in Bethesda, Maryland. The
loan, which has a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.2%
to 1.5%, depending on occupancy levels, matures August 29,
2002 with two one-year extension options. At December 31,
2000, the outstanding balance on the loan was $16.2 million.
The property secures the construction loan facility.
In connection with the land for future development in
Hillsboro, Oregon, the Trust issued a $3.4 million note which
is due June 30, 2001. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus
1.25%. The property secures the loan facility. The Trust
assumed a mortgage with the purchase of the new East
Houston Street property in San Antonio, Texas. The mortgage,
which matures in October 2008, bears interest at 7.5% and
provides for monthly principal and interest payments.
On October 23, 2000, the Trust obtained a $152 million
mortgage loan which is secured by five shopping centers. The
mortgage, which bears interest at 7.95%, matures November 1,
2015 and required an up-front fee of $988,000. The loan provides for interest only payments for the initial three years, then
monthly principal and interest payments based on a twentyseven year amortization schedule until the maturity date. The
proceeds from the mortgage loan were used to pay down the
Trust’s syndicated credit facility.
The Trust has a $300 million syndicated credit facility
with seven banks, originally due December 2002. This facility
requires fees and has various covenants including the maintenance of a minimum shareholders’ equity and a maximum
ratio of debt to net worth. At December 31, 2000, 1999 and

1998, $78.0 million, $34.0 million and $134.1 million, respectively, was borrowed under the syndicated credit facility.
The maximum borrowed during 2000, 1999 and 1998 was
$218.1 million, $205.0 million and $259.1 million, respectively.
The weighted average interest rate on borrowings during 2000,
1999 and 1998 was 7.1%, 5.9% and 6.1%, respectively.
In December 1998, the Trust obtained a four-year loan of
$125 million from five institutional lenders. The loan requires
fees and has the same covenants as the syndicated credit
facility. The average weighted interest rate on the term loan
was 7.4% in 2000 and 6.1% in 1999.
In June 2000, the Trust modified certain covenants and
extended its syndicated credit facility and its $125 million
term loan for an additional year to December 19, 2003. Fees
paid for this extension totaled $1.0 million.
In July 2000, citing the Trust’s pursuit of development
and the resultant capital requirements, Standard and Poor’s
lowered the rating on the Trust’s senior notes from BBB+ to
BBB flat with a positive outlook. Under the terms of the syndicated credit facility, this lowered rating resulted in an increase
in the Trust’s borrowing rate from LIBOR plus 65 basis points
to LIBOR plus 80 basis points. The interest rate on the term
loan increased from LIBOR plus 75 basis points to LIBOR plus
95 basis points.
On November 30, 1999 the Trust issued $175 million of
8.75% Notes due December 1, 2009, netting cash proceeds
of $172.2 million. The notes pay interest semi-annually on
June 1 and December 1.
In order to minimize the risk of changes in interest rates,
from time to time in connection with the issuance of certain
debt issues the Trust will enter into interest rate hedge agreements. In anticipation of the mortgage placement in the third
quarter of 2000, the Trust purchased a Treasury Yield Hedge
(notional amount of $140 million) to minimize the risk of
increased interest rates prior to closing the mortgage. The
hedge was terminated on June 30, 2000 at a gain of $165,000
which is being recognized as a reduction of interest expense
over the term of the mortgage loan. There were no open
hedge agreements at December 31, 2000 and 1999.
In December 1999 the Trustees authorized a share
repurchase program for calendar year 2000 of up to an
aggregate of 4 million of the Trust’s common shares. A total
of 1,325,900 shares were repurchased at a cost of $25.2 million. The Trust does not expect to repurchase shares in 2001.
Capital requirements in 2001 will depend upon acquisition
opportunities, new development efforts, the rate of build-out
on the Trust’s current development pipeline and the level of
improvements and redevelopments on existing properties.
The Trust has budgeted approximately $258 million for 2001
for its three developments in progress and $75 million for
new development, redevelopments, tenant work and improvements to the core portfolio.
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The Trust will need additional capital in order to fund
acquisitions, expansions and developments, particularly
Santana Row, and to refinance its maturing debt. Sources of
this funding may be additional debt, both secured and unsecured, additional equity and joint venture relationships. In addition, the Trust has identified certain of its properties that may
be exchanged or sold as a source of funding, if the Trust’s
sales price is met.
The Trust’s long term debt has varying maturity dates and
in a number of instances includes balloon payments or other
contractual provisions that could require significant repayments
during a particular period. In 2001, $30.7 million of mortgage
debt matures, as well as the $3.4 million note held in connection
with the land held for future development in Hillsboro, Oregon.
The next significant maturities are $25.0 million of Senior
Notes, due April 2002 and the Woodmont East construction
loan due August, 2002. The construction loan contains two,
one-year options to extend.
SANTANA ROW
In the next several years, the Trust’s single largest capital need
is expected to come from the development of Santana Row,
a multi-phase mixed-use project to be built on 42 acres in San
Jose, California in the heart of Silicon Valley. The project will
consist of residential, retail and hotel components, creating a
community with the feel of an urban district. Phase 1 of the
project, for which construction began November 2000, includes
Santana Row, the “1,500 foot long main street” framed by
nine buildings which will contain approximately 538,000 square
feet of retail space, 501 residential units, a 214 room hotel
and the supporting infrastructure. Phase 1 is expected to
begin generating revenues in mid-2002 and be stabilized during
2003. The total cost of Phase 1, which includes the land and
infrastructure for the later phases, is expected to be $475 million. As of December 31, 2000, the Trust has incurred costs
of $97 million including the purchase of the land; the Trust
estimates that it will spend approximately $200 million in 2001
and the balance in 2002 to complete the first phase of the
project. The Trust has a signed commitment from three banks
for up to $295 million of construction financing for Phase 1. Closing
on the commitment is subject to the completion of customary
due diligence for loans of this type and funding is subject
to satisfaction of leasing and other contingencies. Phase 1,
which includes the land and infrastructure for future phases,
comprises approximately 40% of the residential and 75% of
the retail entitlement currently projected for the entire project.
The success of Santana Row will depend on many factors which cannot be assured and are not entirely within the
Trust’s control. These factors include among others, continued
strong demand for retail and residential space at current or
increasing prices, the ability to construct the later phases at
reasonable prices, the cost of operations, including utilities,
the availability and cost of capital and the general economy,
particularly in the Silicon Valley.
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The timing and choice of capital sources will depend on
the cost and availability of that capital, among other things. The
Trust believes, based on past experience, that access to capital
needed to execute its business plan will be available to it.
CONTINGENCIES
Pentagon Row is a mixed-use project with the retail component
being developed by the Trust and the residential component
being developed by an unrelated developer. In October 2000
the general contractor on the project was replaced by the Trust
and the residential developer, because of schedule delays and
other events that caused the Trust and the residential developer
to conclude that the original contractor was either unable or
unwilling to comply with its contractual obligations. The Trust
and the residential developer filed suit against the original contractor to recover damages that they anticipate they will incur
as a result of defaults under the contract. The original contractor filed a counter-claim against the Trust and the residential
developer for damages of $7 million plus interest, attorneys’
fees and litigation costs. The Trust believes that the counterclaim is generally without merit and that the outcome of the
counterclaim will not have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations or on the project. Work
continues under the direction of the new general contractor
and the Trust does not believe that there will be any material
impairment on the project as a result of the schedule delays.
In addition, the Trust is involved in various other lawsuits
and environmental matters arising in the normal course of
business. Management believes that such matters will not
have a material effect on the financial condition or results
of operations of the Trust.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Congressional Plaza
partnership agreement, in the event of the exercise of put
options by another partner, which are currently exercisable
and have no expiration date, the Trust would be required to
purchase a 37.5% interest at Congressional Plaza at its then
fair market value. Based on management’s current estimate
of fair market value, the Trust’s estimated cash requirement
upon exercise of the put option is approximately $27 million.
Under the terms of six other partnership agreements,
if certain leasing and revenue levels are obtained for the properties owned by the partnerships, the limited partners may
require the Trust to purchase their partnership interests at a
formula price based upon net operating income. The purchase
price may be paid in cash or a limited number of common shares
of the Trust, at the election of the limited partners. In certain
of the partnerships, if the limited partners do not redeem their
interest, the Trust may choose to purchase the limited partnership interests upon the same terms.
The limited partners of two partnerships owning street
retail properties in southern California have exercised their rights
under these agreements. The Trust purchased their interests
in March 2001 for approximately $18 million, approximately
$7 million in common shares of the Trust and the balance in cash.

Under the terms of other partnership agreements, the partners may redeem their 904,589 operating units for cash or
exchange into the same number of common shares of the Trust,
at the option of the Trust. During the third quarter of 2000 the
Trust redeemed 100,000 operating units for cash of $2.3 million.
As of December 31, 2000 in connection with renovation
and development projects, the Trust has contractual obligations
of approximately $46 million.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The Trust’s retail leases generally provide for minimum rents
with periodic increases. Most retail tenants pay a majority of
on-site operating expenses and real estate taxes. Many leases
also contain a percentage rent clause which calls for additional
rents based on gross tenant sales. These features in the Trust’s
leases reduce the Trust’s exposure to higher costs caused by
inflation and allow it to participate in improved tenant sales.
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
2000 vs. 1999
Rental income, which consists of minimum rent, percentage
rent and cost recoveries, increased 6.0% from $245.8 million
in 1999 to $260.7 million in 2000. On a same center basis,
rental income increased 7.7%, due primarily to the favorable
impact of redeveloped and retenanted centers, as well as
increases associated with lease rollovers. Same center basis,
in 2000, excludes properties acquired in 2000 and 1999,
Peninsula Shopping Center in Palos Verdes, California and
Northeast Plaza in Atlanta, Georgia which were sold on June 30,
2000 and October 18, 1999, respectively and properties developed in 2000 and 1999, including Bethesda Row Phase 3 in
Bethesda, Maryland, Old Town in Los Gatos, California and
Town & Country Shopping Center in San Jose, California which
was vacated as the Santana Row development began.
Other property income includes items which, although
recurring, tend to fluctuate from period to period, such as utility
reimbursements, telephone income, merchant association
dues, late fees and temporary tenant income. Also included
are less regularly recurring items, such as lease termination
fees. Other property income remained constant in 2000 compared to 1999. On a same center basis, other property income
decreased $473,000 in 2000 compared to 1999, due mostly to
decreases in lease termination fees.
Rental expenses increased 4.8% from $53.7 million in 1999
to $56.3 million in 2000. On a same center basis, rental expenses
increased 6.0% from $49.6 million in 1999 to $52.6 million in
2000, primarily due to general cost increases along with increased
snow removal and utility costs in 2000. Rental expense as a
percentage of property income, rental income plus other property income, remained constant in both periods at 21%.
Real estate taxes increased 6.4% from $25.0 million in 1999
to $26.6 million in 2000. On a same center basis, real estate
taxes increased 5.9% due primarily to increased taxes on
recently redeveloped properties.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased 6.5%
from $50.0 million in 1999 to $53.3 million in 2000 reflecting
the impact of recent tenant work and property improvements.
In 2000, the Trust incurred interest expense of $79.7 million,
of which $13.3 million was capitalized, as compared to 1999’s
$68.4 million, of which $6.9 million was capitalized. The
increase in interest expense reflects the additional debt issued
to fund the Trust’s share repurchase and capital improvement
programs and increased borrowing costs. The weighted average interest rate was 8.0% in 2000 compared with 7.6% in
1999. The ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and
preferred dividends was 1.40x in 2000 and 1.52x in 1999.
The ratio of earnings to fixed charges was 1.50x in 2000 and
1.70x in 1999. The ratio of funds from operations to combined
fixed charges and preferred dividends was 2.0x in 2000 and
2.2x in 1999.
Administrative expenses decreased from $15.1 million
in 1999 to $13.3 million in 2000. In 1999 the Trust incurred
expenses of approximately $2.8 million related to a terminated
merger transaction. The decrease in these costs was offset
by increased personnel costs and several key new hires. The
tight labor market in the Trust’s operating regions resulted in
higher compensation costs both to existing and new employees.
Investors’ share of operations represents the minority
interest in the income of certain properties. The majority of the
$2.6 million increase from $3.9 million in 1999 to $6.5 million
in 2000 is due to the allocation of operating losses to minority
owners in 1999 and 1998 in accordance with the respective
partnership agreements. The remainder of the increase represents the minority partners’ share of increased earnings in
certain shopping center and street retail assets.
On June 30, 2000, the Trust sold the 296,000 square foot
Peninsula Shopping Center located in Palos Verdes, California
for $48.6 million resulting in a gain of $3.7 million. During
the second quarter of 1999, the Trust recorded a $7.1 million
charge, representing the estimated loss on a potential sale of
certain assets, principally Northeast Plaza in Atlanta, Georgia,
thereby valuing the assets at their estimated fair value less
estimated costs to sell. On October 18, 1999, the Trust sold
Northeast Plaza for $19.6 million, realizing a loss of $6.3 million.
As a result of the foregoing items, net income before gain
(loss) on the sale of real estate increased from $55.5 million
in 1999 to $56.8 million in 2000, while net income increased
from $48.4 million in 1999 to $60.5 million in 2000 and net
income available for common shareholders increased from
$40.5 million to $52.6 million.
Growth in net income and funds from operations in 2001
is expected to be slower than in 2000 based on the following
factors; there will be a lower contribution from redevelopment
projects as much of the Trust’s southern California redevelopments were completed in 2000, higher administrative expenses
necessitated by tight labor markets and the addition of key
positions and a temporary reduction in earnings caused by the
demolition of the old Town & Country Shopping Center in 2000
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to make way for the new Santana Row development. The
growth in 2001 will continue to be primarily dependent on
contributions from the core portfolio. Growth of net income
from the core portfolio is, in part, dependent on the financial
health of the Trust’s tenants and on controlling expenses,
some of which are beyond the control of the Trust, such
as snow removal and real estate tax assessments. The Trust
expects that demand for its retail space should remain at its
current levels. A weakening of the retail environment could,
however, adversely impact the Trust by increasing vacancies
and decreasing rents. In past weak retail and real estate environments, the Trust has been able to replace weak and bankrupt tenants with stronger tenants; management believes that
due to the quality of the Trust’s properties there will continue
to be demand for its space.
Growth in net income is also dependent on the amount
of leverage and interest rates. The Trust’s leverage is increasing
as it finances its development pipeline. In addition, the Trust
will continue to have exposure to changes in market interest
rates. If interest rates increase, net income and funds from
operations, as well as the ultimate cost of the Trust’s development projects, will be negatively impacted.
1999 vs. 1998
Rental income, which consists of minimum rent, percentage
rent and cost recoveries, increased 11% from $222.2 million
in 1998 to $245.8 million in 1999. If properties acquired and
sold in 1999 and 1998 are excluded, rental income increased
6%, with the recently renovated and retenanted centers
contributing heavily to the growth, as well as, increases
associated with lease rollovers.
Other property income includes items, such as utility
reimbursements, telephone income, merchant association
dues, late fees, temporary income and lease termination fees.
Other income increased 9% from $10.3 million in 1998 to
$11.2 million in 1999. An increase of $650,000 in temporary
tenant income, an area identified by the Trust as one with
additional growth opportunity, and an increase of $550,000
in lease termination fees surpassed decreases in telephone
income and decreases in marketing dues, as the Trust discontinued marketing funds at certain shopping centers in 1999.
Rental expenses increased 8% from $49.5 million in 1998
to $53.7 million in 1999. If properties acquired and sold in
1999 and 1998 are excluded, rental expenses increased 5%.
A $1.2 million increase in the write off of tenant work and
lease costs associated with bankrupt or terminated leases
coupled with a $975,000 increase in snow removal costs offset the decrease in marketing expenses, consistent with the
decrease in marketing dues.
Real estate taxes increased 7% from $23.3 million in
1998 to $25.0 million in 1999. If properties acquired and
sold in 1999 and 1998 are excluded, real estate taxes
increased 4%, primarily due to increased taxes on recently
redeveloped properties.
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Depreciation and amortization expense increased 9%
from $46.0 million in 1998 to $50.0 million in 1999. If properties acquired and sold in 1999 and 1998 are excluded, depreciation and amortization expense increased 7% due to the
impact of recent tenant work and redevelopments.
Interest income increased 29% from $5.9 million in
1998 to $7.6 million in 1999 due primarily to the issuance
of approximately $24 million of mortgage notes receivable
in 1999 and 1998.
In 1999 the Trust incurred interest expense of $68.4 million, of which $6.9 million was capitalized, as compared to
1998’s $60.2 million, of which $5.1 million was capitalized.
The increase in interest expense reflects the additional debt
issued to help fund the Trust’s 1999 real estate acquisitions
and capital improvements of approximately $116 million. The
weighted average interest rate was 7.6% in 1999 compared
with 8% in 1998. The ratio of earnings to combined fixed
charges and preferred dividends was 1.52x in 1999 and 1.46x
in 1998. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges was 1.70x in
1999 and 1.65x in 1998. The ratio of funds from operations
to combined fixed charges and preferred dividends was 2.2x
in 1999 and 1998.
Administrative expenses decreased from $16.5 million in
1998 to $15.1 million in 1999. Both years contained unusual
expenses. During the third quarter of 1998, the Trust recorded
a $4.7 million charge related to a comprehensive restructuring
program. During the third quarter of 1999, the Trust, in exploring
strategic alternatives to maximize shareholder value, considered
spinning off certain of its assets and merging the remaining
assets with another publicly traded shopping center company.
The Trust incurred expenses of approximately $2.8 million in
connection with this proposed merger and spin-off which
were not consummated. In addition, costs related to abandoned
acquisition and development projects increased approximately
$1.5 million in 1999 over 1998.
Investors’ share of operations represents the minority
interest in the income of certain properties. One third of the
increase from $3.1 million in 1998 to $3.9 million in 1999 is
due to the income attributable to the operating partnership
units issued upon the acquisition of Kings Court and Leesburg
Plaza in the second half of 1998. The majority of the remaining
increase represents the minority partners’ share of the increased
earnings in the southern California street retail assets, many
of which have been redeveloped during 1998 and 1999.
As a result of the foregoing items, net income before loss
on the sale of real estate increased from $45.0 million in 1998
to $55.5 million in 1999, reflecting both the contribution to
net income from the Trust’s acquisitions and the contribution
from the core portfolio, primarily the recently redeveloped
and retenanted properties.
During the second quarter of 1999, the Trust recorded a
$7.1 million charge, representing the estimated loss on the potential sale of certain assets, principally Northeast Plaza in Atlanta,
Georgia. On October 18, 1999 the Trust sold Northeast Plaza

for $19.6 million, realizing a loss of $6.3 million. Consequently, net
income increased from $45.0 million in 1998 to $48.4 million in
1999 with net income available for common shareholders
increasing from $37.0 million in 1998 to $40.5 million in 1999.
SEGMENT RESULTS
The Trust has traditionally operated its business as a single
business segment. During the fourth quarter of 1998, however,
the Trust completed a comprehensive restructuring program
which, among other things, changed the Trust’s operating
structure from a functional hierarchy to an asset management
model, where small focused teams are responsible for a portfolio of assets. As a result the Trust has divided its portfolio of
properties into three geographic operating regions: Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic and West. Each region is operated under the
direction of a chief operating officer, with dedicated leasing,
property management and financial staff and operates largely
autonomously with respect to day to day operating decisions.
Incentive compensation, throughout the regional teams, is
tied to the net operating income of the respective portfolios.
Historical operating results for the three regions are as
follows (in thousands):
2000

1999

1998

Rental Income
Northeast
Mid-Atlantic
West

$113,078
114,371
33,235
_______________________

$102,452
111,624
31,757
_______________________

$ 93,632
103,676
24,878
_______________________

Total

$260,684
_______________________

$245,833
_______________________

$222,186
_______________________

$ 79,685
84,346
24,818
_______________________

$ 74,276
81,425
22,665
_______________________

$ 66,396
76,065
17,311
_______________________

$188,849
_______________________

$178,366
_______________________

$159,772
_______________________

Net Operating Income
Northeast
Mid-Atlantic
West
Total

THE NORTHEAST
The Northeast region is comprised of 54 assets, extending from
suburban Philadelphia north to New York and its suburbs into
New England and west to Illinois and Michigan. A significant
portion of this portfolio has been held by the Trust for many years
although acquisitions, redevelopment and retenanting remain
major components to the current and future performance of the
region. Several redevelopment projects were completed in 2000,
which enhanced revenues and net operating income in 2000.
When comparing 2000 with 1999, rental income increased
10% from $102.5 million in 1999 to $113.1 million in 2000.
Excluding Greenlawn Plaza in Greenlawn, New York which
was acquired on January 5, 2000, on a same center basis,
rental income also increased 10%, primarily due to increases
at the recently redeveloped and retenanted shopping centers
such as, Bala Cynwyd, Lawrence Park, Gratiot, Langhorne
Square, and Wynnewood.
Net operating income increased 7% from $74.3 million
in 1999 to $79.7 million in 2000. Excluding Greenlawn Plaza
in Greenlawn, New York which was acquired on January 5,

2000, on a same center basis, net operating income also
increased 7%, primarily due to increases at the recently
redeveloped and retenanted Bala Cynwyd, Lawrence Park,
Gratiot, Langhorne Square, and Wynnewood shopping centers.
When comparing 1999 with 1998, rental income
increased 9% from $93.6 million in 1998 to $102.5 million in
1999. Excluding properties acquired during the two periods,
rental income increased 7%, driven by increases at the
recently redeveloped and retenanted Brick, Feasterville,
Gratiot, Huntington and Wynnewood shopping centers.
Net operating income increased 12% from $66.4 million
in 1998 to $74.3 million in 1999. Excluding properties acquired
in 1998 and 1999, net operating income increased 9%, primarily due to increases at the recently redeveloped and
retenanted Brick, Feasterville, Gratiot, Huntington and
Wynnewood shopping centers.
THE MID-ATLANTIC
The Mid-Atlantic region is comprised of 32 assets, including
Pentagon Row which is currently under development, extending
from Baltimore south to metropolitan Washington D.C. and
further south through Virginia and North Carolina into Florida.
As with the Northeast region, a significant portion of this portfolio has been held by the Trust for many years although
acquisitions, redevelopment and retenanting remain major
components to its current and future performance. Two of the
Trust’s major new development projects, Pentagon Row and
additional phases of Bethesda Row, will be managed by this
regional operating team upon their completion.
When comparing 2000 with 1999, rental income
increased 3% from $111.6 million in 1999 to $114.4 million
in 2000. On a same center basis, excluding Northeast Plaza
in Atlanta, Georgia which was sold in 1999 and the recently
developed Phase 3 of the Bethesda Row project in Bethesda,
Maryland, rental income increased 4%, due in part to new
anchor leases at several centers. Net operating income
increased 4% from $81.4 million in 1999 to $84.3 million in
2000. On a same center basis as above, net operating income
increased 5%, due primarily to new anchor leases and lease
termination fees.
When comparing 1999 with 1998, rental income increased
8% from $103.7 million in 1998 to $111.6 million in 1999.
Excluding properties acquired and sold in 1999 and 1998,
rental income increased 5%.
Net operating income increased 7% from $76.1 million in
1998 to $81.4 million in 1999. Excluding properties acquired
and sold in 1999 and 1998, net operating income increased 3%.
THE WEST
The West region is comprised of 38 assets, including Santana
Row which is currently under development, extending from
Texas to the West Coast. Unlike the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic
regions, this portfolio is relatively new to the Trust and is part
of a deliberate expansion west over the past several years.
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This region is the fastest growing at the Trust and includes
the Trust’s largest new development project, Santana Row
in San Jose, California. Several redevelopment projects were
completed in 2000 and several more are currently underway,
particularly in southern California and San Antonio, Texas,
which are expected to add to revenues and net operating
income in 2001 and future years.
When comparing 2000 with 1999 on a same center basis,
which excludes newly developed properties, Santana Row,
which is currently under development, and properties sold and
acquired since January 1, 1999, rental income increased 20%
from $19.7 million in 1999 to $23.5 million in 2000, due primarily to recently redeveloped and retenanted properties in the
Los Angeles and San Francisco, California areas. On an overall
basis, which includes the impact of the sale of Peninsula
Shopping Center on June 30, 2000 and the temporary reduction
in earnings caused by the demolition of the old Town & Country
Shopping Center to make way for the new Santana Row development, rental income increased 5% from $31.8 million in 1999
to $33.2 million in 2000.
On the same center basis as defined above, net operating
income increased 25% from $14.2 million in 1999 to $17.8 million in 2000, due to increases from the recently redeveloped
and retenanted properties in the Los Angeles and San Francisco,
California areas. Overall net operating income increased 10%
from $22.7 million in 1999 to $24.8 million in 2000, again reflecting the sale of Peninsula Shopping Center and the temporary
reduction in earnings caused by the Santana Row development.
When comparing 1999 with 1998, rental income increased
28% from $24.9 million in 1998 to $31.8 million in 1999.
Excluding properties acquired in 1999 and 1998, rental income
increased 11%, driven by the redevelopment of Old Town
in Los Gatos, California and several street retail buildings
in southern California.
Net operating income increased 31% from $17.3 million
in 1998 to $22.7 million in 1999. Excluding properties acquired
in 1999 and 1998, net operating income increased 14%, driven
by the redevelopment of Old Town in Los Gatos, California
and several street retail buildings in southern California.
FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS
The Trust has historically reported its funds from operations in
addition to its net income and net cash provided by operating
activities. Funds from operations is a supplemental measure of
real estate companies’ operating performance. As of January 1,
2000, the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(NAREIT) defines funds from operations as follows: income
available for common shareholders before depreciation and
amortization of real estate assets and before extraordinary items
less gains on sale of real estate. Prior to January 1, 2000, funds
from operations also excluded significant nonrecurring events.
Funds from operations does not replace net income as a measure of performance or net cash provided by operating activities
as a measure of liquidity. Rather, funds from operations has
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been adopted by real estate investment trusts to provide a
consistent measure of operating performance in the industry.
Nevertheless, funds from operations, as presented by the
Trust, may not be comparable to funds from operations as
presented by other real estate investment trusts.
The reconciliation of net income to funds from operations
is as follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,
2000
1999
1998
Net income available
for common shareholders
Depreciation and amortization
of real estate assets
Amortization of initial direct costs of leases
Income attributable to operating partnership units
(Gain) loss on sale of real estate
Non-recurring items
Funds from operations for common shareholders

$ 52,573

$40,493

$37,010

48,456
45,388
3,514
3,033
1,311
831
(3,681)
7,050
— ____________________
—
_______________________
$102,173
$96,795
_______________________ ____________________

41,792
2,491
578
—
4,665
____________________
$86,536
____________________

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
On May 5, 1999, the Trust appointed the accounting firm of
Arthur Andersen LLP as independent public accountants to
replace Grant Thornton LLP, which was dismissed effective
the same date. The Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the
decision to change independent public accountants upon the
recommendation of the Trust’s Audit Committee. During the
Trust’s fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 and the interim
period through March 31, 1999 there were no disagreements
with Grant Thornton LLP on any matter of accounting principles
or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope
or procedure. The reports issued by Grant Thornton LLP on
the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
1998 contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion,
and were not qualified as to uncertainty, audit scope or
accounting principles.
During the Trust’s fiscal year ended December 31, 1998
and the interim period through March 31, 1999, the Trust had
not consulted with Arthur Andersen LLP regarding the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, the
type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Trust’s
financial statements, or any matter that was either the subject
of a disagreement or a reportable event.
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Trust’s primary financial market risk is the fluctuation in
interest rates. At December 31, 2000, the Trust had $232.0 million of variable rate debt. Based upon this balance of variable
debt, if interest rates increased 1%, the Trust’s earnings and
cash flows would decrease by $2.3 million. If interest rates
decreased 1%, the Trust’s earnings and cash flows would
increase by $2.3 million. The Trust believes that the change
in the fair value of its financial instruments resulting from a
foreseeable fluctuation in interest rates would be immaterial
to its total assets and total liabilities.

FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2000

December 31,
1999
(in thousands)

Assets
Investments
Real estate, at cost

$1,854,913

$1,721,459

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

(351,258)
____________________________

(317,921)
____________________________

1,503,655

1,403,538

Cash

11,357

11,738

Mortgage notes receivable

47,360

53,495

Accounts and notes receivable

13,092

23,130

Prepaid expenses and other assets, principally property taxes and lease commissions

38,140

36,807

Debt issue costs, net of accumulated amortization of $3,982 and $3,885, respectively

7,475
____________________________

5,340
____________________________

$1,621,079
____________________________

$1,534,048
____________________________

$ 121,611

$ 122,026

Other Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Obligations under capital leases
Mortgages payable

202,300

50,547

Notes payable

225,246

162,768

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

36,810

34,974

Dividends payable

19,892

19,431

Security deposits

5,537

5,068

Prepaid rents

8,819

6,788

410,000

510,000

5 ⁄4% Convertible subordinated debentures

75,289

75,289

Investors’ interest in consolidated assets

47,921

45,330

100,000

100,000

410

404

Senior notes and debentures
1

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, authorized 15,000,000 shares, $.01 par
7.95% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, (stated at
liquidation preference $25 per share), 4,000,000 shares issued in 1997
Common shares of beneficial interest, $.01 par, 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 40,910,972 and 40,418,766 issued, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated dividends in excess of Trust net income
Less: 1,441,594 and 217,644 common shares in treasury—at cost, respectively
Deferred compensation on restricted shares
Notes receivable from employee stock plans

723,078

713,354

(306,287)
____________________________

(286,348)
____________________________

517,201

527,410

(27,753)

(4,334)

(17,254)

(15,219)

(4,540)
____________________________

(6,030)
____________________________

467,654
____________________________

501,827
____________________________

$1,621,079
____________________________

$1,534,048
____________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Consolidated Statements of Operations

2000

Year ended December 31,
1999

1998

(in thousands except per share data)

Revenue
Rental income

$260,684

$245,833

$222,186

7,532

7,649

5,945

11,065
_______________________

11,231
_______________________

10,347
_______________________

279,281

264,713

238,478

Rental

56,280

53,677

49,490

Real estate taxes

26,620

25,021

23,271

Interest

66,418

61,492

55,125

Administrative

13,318

15,120

16,461

53,259
_______________________

50,011
_______________________

46,047
_______________________

215,895
_______________________

205,321
_______________________

190,394
_______________________

63,386

59,392

48,084

(6,544)
_______________________

(3,899)
_______________________

(3,124)
_______________________

56,842

55,493

44,960

3,681
_______________________

(7,050)
_______________________

—
_______________________

60,523

48,443

44,960

(7,950)
_______________________

(7,950)
_______________________

(7,950)
_______________________

$_______________________
52,573

$_______________________
40,493

$_______________________
37,010

Income before gain (loss) on sale of real estate

$

$

$

Gain (loss) on sale of real estate

0.10
_______________________

(0.18)
_______________________

—
_______________________

$_______________________
1.36

$_______________________
1.02

$_______________________
0.94

38,796
_______________________

39,574
_______________________

39,174
_______________________

Income before gain (loss) on sale of real estate

$

$

$

Gain (loss) on sale of real estate

0.09
_______________________

(0.17)
_______________________

—
_______________________

$_______________________
1.35

$_______________________
1.02

$_______________________
0.94

39,910
_______________________

40,638
_______________________

40,080
_______________________

Interest and other income
Other property income

Expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income before investors’ share of operations
and gain (loss) on sale of real estate
Investors’ share of operations
Income before gain (loss) on sale of real estate
Gain (loss) on sale of real estate
Net income
Dividends on preferred stock
Net income available for common shareholders

Earnings per common share, basic

Weighted average number of common shares, basic

1.26

1.20

0.94

Earnings per common share, diluted

Weighted average number of common shares, diluted
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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1.26

1.19

0.94

FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity

2000

(in thousands, except share data)

Shares

Common Shares
of Beneficial Interest
Balance, beginning of year
40,418,766
Adjustment to reflect
change in par value
—
Exercise of stock options
67,684
Shares issued under dividend
reinvestment plan
153,713
Performance and Restricted
Shares granted, net of
Restricted Shares retired
270,809
____________________________
Balance, end of year
40,910,972
____________________________
Accumulated Dividends in
Excess of Trust Net Income
Balance, beginning of year
Net income
Dividends declared
to common shareholders
Dividends declared
to preferred shareholders
Balance, end of year
Common Shares of Beneficial
Interest in Treasury
Balance, beginning of year
Performance and Restricted
Shares issued
Performance and Restricted
Shares forfeited
Purchase of treasury shares
Balance, end of year
Deferred Compensation
on Restricted Shares
Balance, beginning of year
Performance and
Restricted Shares
issued, net of forfeitures
Vesting of Performance
and Restricted Shares
Balance, end of year
Subscriptions receivable
from employee stock plans
Balance, beginning of year
Subscription loans issued
Subscription loans paid
Balance, end of year

Amount

$

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Year ended December 31,
1999
Additional
Paid-in
Shares
Amount
Capital

1998

Shares

Additional
Paid-in
Amount Capital

404

$713,354

40,139,675

$ 707,724

—

39,200,201

$ 684,823

—

—
1

—
1,398

—
52,667

(707,323)
—

$707,323
1,092

—
230,908

—
4,880

—
—

2

3,136

165,770

2

3,566

167,511

3,990

—

_________________________3
$
410
_________________________

5,190
________________________
$723,078
________________________

60,654
____________________________
40,418,766
____________________________

_________________________1
$
404
_________________________

1,373
_______________________
$713,354
_______________________

541,055
____________________________
40,139,675
____________________________

14,031
_________________________
$_________________________
707,724

—
_______
—
_______

$(286,348)
60,523

$(255,211)
48,443

$(222,709)
44,960

(72,512)

(71,630)

(69,512)

(7,950)
_________________________
$(306,287)
_________________________

(7,950)
_________________________
$(286,348)
_________________________

(7,950)
_________________________
$(255,211)
_________________________

(217,644)

$ (4,334)

(59,425)

$ (1,376)

(52,386)

$ (1,002)

—

—

—

—

35,000

649

(38,550)
(1,185,400)
____________________________

(787)
(22,632)
_________________________

(17,719)
(140,500)
____________________________

(393)
(2,565)
_________________________

(42,039)
—
____________________________

(1,023)
—
_________________________

(1,441,594)
____________________________

$_________________________
(27,753)

(217,644)
____________________________

$ (4,334)
_________________________

(59,425)
____________________________

$ (1,376)
_________________________

(599,427)

$ (15,219)

(582,910)

$ (14,892)

(22,000)

(218,771)

(4,151)

(31,660)

(730)

(576,055)

(14,679)

82,323
____________________________
(735,875)
____________________________

2,116
_________________________
$_________________________
(17,254)

15,143
____________________________
(599,427)
____________________________

403
_________________________
$ (15,219)
_________________________

15,145
____________________________
(582,910)
____________________________

408
_________________________
$ (14,892)
_________________________

(317,606)
(5,500)
80,468
____________________________

$ (6,030)
(115)
1,605
_________________________

(337,111)
(9,083)
28,588
____________________________

$ (6,298)
(190)
458
_________________________

(382,725)
(111,114)
156,728
____________________________

$ (6,681)
(2,378)
2,761
_________________________

(242,638)
____________________________

$_________________________
(4,540)

(317,606)
____________________________

$ (6,030)
_________________________

(337,111)
____________________________

$ (6,298)
_________________________

$

(621)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

2000

Year ended December 31,
1999

1998

(in thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income

$ 60,523

$ 48,443

$ 44,960

Depreciation and amortization

53,259

50,011

46,047

(Gain) loss on sale of real estate

(3,681)

7,050

—

Other, net

1,634

2,395

2,301

323

(5,257)

878

Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets before depreciation and amortization

(6,834)

(2,183)

(9,571)

Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable, security deposits and prepaid rent

3,342

(1,202)

2,148

(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses

(2,420)
_________________________

2,926
_________________________

3,664
_________________________

Net cash provided by operating activities

106,146

102,183

90,427

(23,554)

(25,337)

(92,946)

(145,838)

(90,796)

(73,030)

494

(2,341)

(21,375)

47,157

19,161

—

—
_________________________

—
_________________________

(295)
_________________________

(121,741)

(99,313)

(187,646)

47,400

(100,147)

144,357

Proceeds from mortgage and construction financing, net of costs

166,383

—

—

(Repayment) issuance of senior notes, net of costs

(100,000)

172,193

79,540

Issuance of common shares

3,428

2,243

5,310

Common shares repurchased

(22,632)

(2,565)

—

(2,169)

(1,151)

(55,248)

(77,499)

(76,617)

(74,284)

Increase (decrease) in minority interest, net

303
_________________________

(2,318)
_________________________

(2,269)
_________________________

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

15,214
_________________________

(8,362)
_________________________

97,406
_________________________

(381)

(5,492)

187

Cash at beginning of year

11,738
_________________________

17,230
_________________________

17,043
_________________________

Cash at end of year

$_________________________
11,357

$ 11,738
_________________________

$ 17,230
_________________________

Items not requiring cash outlays

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable

Investing Activities
Acquisition of real estate
Capital expenditures
Repayments (issuance) of mortgage notes receivable, net
Proceeds from sale of real estate, net of costs
Other, net
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities
Borrowing (repayment) of short-term debt, net

Payments on mortgages, capital leases and notes payable
Dividends paid

(Decrease) increase in cash

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Federal Realty Investment Trust (the ”Trust”) is a full-service
real estate company, which owns and operates community
and neighborhood shopping centers and which owns and
develops main street retail properties, retail buildings and
mixed-use properties located in densely developed urban
and suburban areas.
The Trust operates in a manner intended to enable it
to qualify as a real estate investment trust for federal income
tax purposes. A trust which distributes at least 95% of its
real estate investment trust taxable income to its shareholders
each year and which meets certain other conditions will not
be taxed on that portion of its taxable income which is distributed to its shareholders. Therefore, no provision for Federal
income taxes is required.
The consolidated financial statements of the Trust include
the accounts of the Trust, its wholly owned corporate subsidiaries, several corporations where the Trust has a majority
ownership, numerous partnerships and a joint venture, all of
which it controls. The equity interests of other investors are
reflected as investors’ interest in consolidated assets. All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated
in consolidation.
Revenue Recognition. Leases with tenants are classified as
operating leases. Minimum rents are recognized on a straightline basis over the terms of the related leases net of valuation
adjustments based on management’s assessment of credit,
collection and other business risk. Percentage rents, which
represent additional rents based on gross tenant sales, are
recognized at the end of the lease year or other period in which
tenant sales’ volumes have been reached and the percentage
rents are due. Real estate tax and other cost reimbursements
are recognized on an accrual basis over the periods in which
the expenditures occurred.
Real Estate. Land, buildings and real estate under development are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method. Estimated useful lives range from three
to 25 years on apartment buildings and improvements, and
from three to 35 years on retail properties and improvements.
Maintenance and repair costs are charged to operations as
incurred. Tenant work and other major improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the life of the lease and their estimated
useful life, respectively. The gain or loss resulting from the sale
of properties is included in net income at the time of sale. Upon
termination of a lease, undepreciated tenant improvement costs
are charged to operations if the assets are replaced and the asset
and the corresponding accumulated depreciation are retired.
The Trust evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived
assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of.” In cases where particular assets are being held for sale,

impairment is based on whether the fair value (estimated sales
price less costs of disposal) of each individual property to be sold
is less than the net book value. Otherwise, impairment is based
on whether it is probable that undiscounted future cash flows
from each property will be less than its net book value. If a property is impaired, its basis is adjusted to its fair market value.
The Trust, when applicable as lessee, classifies its leases
of land and buildings as operating or capital leases in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.”
Certain external and internal costs directly related to
the development, redevelopment and leasing of real estate
including applicable salaries and their related direct costs
are capitalized. The capitalized costs associated with developments, redevelopments and leasing are depreciated
or amortized over the life of the improvement and lease,
respectively. Unamortized leasing costs are charged to
operations if the applicable tenant vacates before the expiration of their lease. Through March 1998, internal costs
of preacquisition activities incurred in connection with the
acquisition of an operating property were capitalized. On
March 19, 1998 the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board reached a consensus opinion on issue #97-11, “Accounting for Internal
Costs Relating to Real Estate Property Acquisitions” which
requires that the internal costs of preacquisition activities
incurred in connection with the acquisition of an operating
property be expensed as incurred. Consequently, the Trust
has been expensing these costs since March 1998.
Interest costs on developments and major redevelopments
are capitalized as part of the development and redevelopment.
Debt Issue Costs. Costs related to the issuance of debt
instruments are capitalized and are amortized as interest
expense over the life of the related issue using the effective
interest method. Upon conversion or in the event of redemption, applicable unamortized costs are charged to shareholders’
equity or to operations, respectively.
Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Trust defines cash as cash on
hand, demand deposits with financial institutions and short
term liquid investments with an initial maturity under three
months. Cash balances in individual banks may exceed insurable amounts from time to time.
Risk Management. The Trust has occasionally entered into
derivative contracts prior to a scheduled financing or refinancing
in order to minimize the risk of changes in interest rates. The
derivative contracts are designated as hedges when acquired.
The gain or loss on these transactions is recognized as a component of interest expense over the life of the financing.
The Trust does not use derivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes. There were no open derivative
contracts at December 31, 2000 or 1999. In June 1998, SFAS
No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” was issued. This statement established accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
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certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts
and for hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognize
all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of
financial position and measure those instruments at fair value.
If certain conditions are met, a derivative may be specifically
designated as a hedge of the exposure to certain risks. SFAS
No. 137 “Deferral of Effective Date of SFAS No. 133” was issued
and delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 133
is effective January 1, 2001 for the Trust. As previously stated,
the Trust has no derivatives as of December 31, 2000 and as a
result, there is no related transition adjustment upon transition.
Acquisition, Development and Construction Loan Arrangements. The
Trust has made certain mortgage loans that, because of their
nature, qualify as loan receivables. At the time the loans were
made the Trust did not intend for the arrangement to be anything other than a financing and did not contemplate a real
estate investment. Using guidance set forth in the Third Notice
to Practitioners issued by the AICPA in February 1986 entitled “ADC Arrangements” (“the Third Notice”), the Trust
evaluates each investment to determine whether the loan
arrangement qualifies under the Third Notice as a loan, joint
venture or real estate investment and the appropriate accounting thereon; such determination affects the Trust’s balance
sheet classification of these investments and the recognition
of interest income derived therefrom. Generally, the Trust
receives additional interest on these loans, however the Trust
never receives in excess of 50% of the residual profit in the
project (as defined in the Third Notice) and because the borrower has either a substantial investment in the project or
has guaranteed all or a portion of the Trust’s loan (or a combination thereof) the loans qualify for loan accounting. The
amounts under ADC arrangements at December 31, 2000
and 1999 are $47.4 million and $53.5 million, respectively
and interest income recognized thereon was $5.0 million
and $5.7 million, respectively.
Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. These estimates are prepared using management’s best judgment, after considering past and current
events. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Comprehensive Income. The Trust has no comprehensive
income and therefore does not require separate reporting
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Earnings Per Share. The Trust calculates basic and diluted
earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings
Per Share.” Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by
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dividing net income available for common shareholders by the
weighted number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common shares were
exercised or converted into common shares and then shared
in the earnings of the Trust.
The following table sets forth the reconciliation between
basic and diluted EPS (in thousands):
Numerator
Net income available for
common shareholders—basic
Income attributable to
operating partnership units
Net income available for
common shareholders—diluted
Denominator
Denominator for basic
EPS—weighted average shares
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and awards
Operating partnership units
Weighted average shares—diluted

2000

1999

1998

$52,573

$40,493

$37,010

1,311
____________________

831
____________________

578
____________________

$53,884
____________________

$41,324
____________________

$37,588
____________________

38,796

39,574

39,174

155
959
____________________
39,910
____________________

214
850
____________________
40,638
____________________

292
614
____________________
40,080
____________________

Stock options are accounted for in accordance with APB 25,
whereby if options are priced at fair market value or above at
the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.
NOTE 1. REAL ESTATE AND ENCUMBRANCES
A summary of the Trust’s properties at December 31, 2000
and 1999 is as follows (in thousands):

2000
Retail properties
Retail properties
under capital leases
Apartments
1999
Retail properties
Retail properties
under capital leases
Apartments

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Encumbrances

$1,633,448

$276,982

$202,300

214,805
6,660
____________________________
$1,854,913
____________________________

68,564
5,712
_______________________
$351,258
_______________________

121,611
—
_______________________
$323,911
_______________________

$1,506,684

$251,946

$ 50,547

208,135
6,640
____________________________

60,487
5,488
_______________________

122,026
—
_______________________

$1,721,459
____________________________

$317,921
_______________________

$172,573
_______________________

During 2000, the Trust expended cash of $23.6 million
to acquire real estate and an additional $145.8 million to
improve, redevelop and develop its existing real estate. The
Trust purchased the 75,000 square foot Greenlawn Plaza in
Greenlawn, New York for $6.2 million. Control of a parcel of
land for future development in Hillsboro, Oregon was acquired

for $11.7 million; an additional $1.6 million will be owed if certain
cash flow criteria are met during the first ten years of operations.
Other acquisitions include a parcel of land in Bethesda, Maryland
for $461,000; an additional property for the Trust’s Houston
Street project in San Antonio, Texas for cash of $1.2 million
and the assumption of a $345,000 mortgage; a retail building
in Santa Monica, California in satisfaction of a $5.2 million
mortgage note receivable and cash of $1.7 million; and the
$2.3 million redemption of 100,000 operating partnership units
which had been issued in connection with the purchase of
Courthouse Square and Magruders Shopping Centers.
Of the $145.8 million spent in 2000 on the Trust’s existing
real estate portfolio, approximately $82.1 million was invested
in development projects in Bethesda, Maryland; San Jose,
California; and in Arlington, Virginia. The remaining $63.7 million
of capital expenditures relates to improvements to common
areas, tenant work and various redevelopments, including
the renovation of Greenlawn Plaza, the office expansion and
retenanting of Willow Lawn Shopping Center, the renovation
of Brunswick Shopping Center, and the redevelopment of
retail buildings in Forest Hills, New York, San Antonio, Texas
and southern California.
The Trust, which held the 1% general partnership interest,
obtained an additional 98% general partnership interest in the
future operations of Loehmann’s Plaza. The minority partner
received 190,000 partnership units valued at $3.6 million and
the satisfaction of amounts due the Trust from the partnership.
The Trust’s 123 retail properties at December 31, 2000
are located in 15 states and the District of Columbia. There
are approximately 2,100 tenants providing a wide range of
retail products and services. These tenants range from sole
proprietorships to national retailers; no one tenant or corporate group of tenants accounts for more than 2.1% of revenue.
Mortgage notes receivable of $47.4 million are due over
various terms from January 2001 to May 2021 and have an
average weighted interest rate of 10.0%. Under the terms
of certain of these mortgages, the Trust will receive additional
interest based upon the gross income of the secured properties
and, upon sale of the properties, the Trust will share in the
appreciation of the properties.
On June 30, 2000, the Trust sold the 296,000 square foot
Peninsula Shopping Center located in Palos Verdes, California
for $48.6 million resulting in a gain of $3.7 million.
During the second quarter of 1999,the Trust recorded a
$7.1 million charge, representing the estimated loss on the
potential sale of certain assets, principally Northeast Plaza in
Atlanta, Georgia. On October 18, 1999 the Trust sold Northeast
Plaza for $19.6 million, realizing a loss of $6.3 million.
Mortgages payable and capital lease obligations are due
in installments over various terms extending to 2016 and 2060,
respectively, with interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 11.25%.

Certain of the capital lease obligations require additional interest payments based upon property performance. There were
no maturing mortgages in 2000 or 1999. In 1998 the Trust
paid off maturing mortgages totaling $53.5 million.
On October 23, 2000, the Trust obtained a $152 million
mortgage loan which is secured by five shopping centers. The
mortgage, which bears interest at 7.95%, matures November 1,
2015 and required an up-front fee of $988,000. The loan provides
for interest only payments for the initial three years, then
monthly principal and interest payments based on a twentyseven year amortization schedule until the maturity date.
The proceeds from the mortgage loan were used to pay
down the Trust’s syndicated credit facility.
In anticipation of the mortgage loan placement in the third
quarter of 2000, the Trust purchased a Treasury Yield Hedge
(notional amount of $140 million) to hedge the risk of changes in
interest rates. The hedge was terminated on June 30, 2000 at
a gain of $165,000 which is being recognized as a reduction
of interest expense over the term of the mortgage loan.
Scheduled principal payments on mortgage indebtedness
as of December 31, 2000 are as follows (in thousands):
Year ending December 31,
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$ 30,696
35
172
1,725
1,886
167,786
_______________________
$202,300
_______________________

Future minimum lease payments and their present value
for property under capital leases as of December 31, 2000,
are as follows (in thousands):
Year ending December 31,
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter
Less amount representing interest
Present value

$ 11,736
11,528
11,458
11,673
11,673
504,161
_________________________
562,229
(440,618)
_________________________
$ 121,611
_________________________

Leasing Arrangements
The Trust’s leases with retail property and apartment tenants
are classified as operating leases. Leases on apartments are
generally for a period of one year, whereas retail property leases
generally range from three to 10 years (certain leases with
anchor tenants may be longer), and usually provide for contingent
rentals based on sales and sharing of certain operating costs.
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The components of rental income are as follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,
2000
1999
1998
Retail properties
Minimum rents
Cost reimbursements
Percentage rent
Apartments—rents

$208,474
43,056
6,364
2,790
_______________________

$197,299
39,574
6,277
2,683
_______________________

$178,936
34,897
5,766
2,587
_______________________

$260,684
_______________________

$245,833
_______________________

$222,186
_______________________

The components of rental expense are as follows
(in thousands):
Repairs and maintenance
Management fees and costs
Utilities
Payroll—properties
Ground rent
Insurance
Other operating

2000
$16,590
9,831
8,096
4,510
3,190
2,900
11,163
____________________
$56,280
____________________

Year ended December 31,
1999
1998
$15,347
$13,942
10,635
9,510
7,120
7,625
4,440
3,775
2,933
2,829
2,774
2,610
10,428
9,199
____________________
____________________
$53,677
____________________

$49,490
____________________

Minimum future retail property rentals on noncancelable
operating leases, before any reserve for uncollectible amounts,
on operating properties as of December 31, 2000 are as follows (in thousands):
Year ending December 31,
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$ 201,753
188,629
169,579
148,357
127,460
713,263
____________________________
$1,549,041
____________________________

NOTE 2. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following disclosure of estimated fair value was determined
by the Trust, using available market information and appropriate
valuation methods. Considerable judgment is necessary to
develop estimates of fair value. The estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could
be realized upon disposition of the financial instruments.
The Trust estimates the fair value of its financial instruments
using the following methods and assumptions: (1) quoted
market prices, when available, are used to estimate the fair
value of investments in marketable debt and equity securities;
(2) quoted market prices are used to estimate the fair value
of the Trust’s marketable convertible subordinated debentures;
(3) discounted cash flow analyses are used to estimate the
fair value of mortgage notes receivable and payable, using
the Trust’s estimate of current interest rates for similar notes;
(4) carrying amounts in the balance sheet approximate fair
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value for cash, accounts payable, accrued expenses and short
term borrowings. Notes receivable from officers are excluded
from fair value estimation since they have been issued in connection with employee stock ownership programs.

(in thousands)

Cash & equivalents
Investments
Mortgage notes receivable
Mortgages and notes payable
Convertible debentures
Senior notes

December 31, 2000
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
$ 11,357
$ 11,357
2,356
2,356
47,360
48,039
427,546
427,937
75,289
71,058
410,000
411,934

December 31, 1999
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
$ 11,738
$ 11,738
2,403
2,403
53,495
54,174
213,315
213,579
75,289
71,058
510,000
488,355

NOTE 3. NOTES PAYABLE
The Trust’s notes consist of the following (in thousands):
Revolving credit facilities
Term note with banks
Construction loan
Other

2000
$ 78,000
125,000
16,241
6,005
_______________________

1999
$ 34,000
125,000
—
3,768
_______________________

$225,246
_______________________

$162,768
_______________________

In December 1997 the Trust obtained a five year syndicated
revolving credit facility for $300 million due December 2002.
The syndicated facility requires fees and has various covenants
including the maintenance of a minimum shareholders’ equity
and a maximum ratio of debt to net worth.
In December 1998 the Trust obtained a four year loan
of $125 million from five institutional lenders. The loan, due
December 2002, requires fees and has the same covenants
as the syndicated credit facility.
In June 2000, the Trust modified certain covenants and
extended the maturity date to December 19, 2003 of its syndicated credit facility and its $125 million term loan. Fees paid
for this extension totaled $1.0 million. The Trust is in compliance with all covenants.
In July 2000, citing the Trust’s pursuit of development
and the resulting capital requirements, Standard and Poor’s
lowered the rating on the Trust’s senior notes from BBB+ to
BBB flat with a positive outlook. Under the terms of the syndicated credit facility, this lowered rating resulted in an increase
in the Trust’s borrowing rate from LIBOR plus 65 basis points
to LIBOR plus 80 basis points. The interest rate on the term
loan increased from LIBOR plus 75 basis points to LIBOR plus
95 basis points.
The maximum drawn under these facilities during 2000, 1999
and 1998 was $343.1 million, $330.0 million and $259.1 million, respectively. In 2000, 1999 and 1998 the weighted average interest rate on borrowings was 7.2%, 5.9% and 6.1%,
respectively, and the average amount outstanding was
$283.2 million, $296.4 million and $163.6 million, respectively.

On February 29, 2000, the Trust obtained a construction
loan for up to $24.5 million in connection with the Trust’s
Woodmont East development in Bethesda, Maryland. The
loan, which has a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.2%
to 1.5%, depending on occupancy levels, matures August 29,
2002 with two one-year extension options. At December 31,
2000, the outstanding balance on the construction loan was
$16.2 million. No principal payments are due until maturity. The
property secures the construction loan facility.
In connection with the land held for future development
in Hillsboro, Oregon, the Trust issued a $3.4 million note which
is due June 30, 2001. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus
1.25%. The property secures the loan facility.
NOTE 4. 5 1⁄4 % CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED
DEBENTURES
In October 1993 the Trust issued $75.0 million of 51⁄4% convertible subordinated debentures, realizing cash proceeds of
approximately $73.0 million. The debentures were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, and were not publicly
distributed within the United States. The debentures, which
mature in 2003, are convertible into shares of beneficial interest at $36 per share. The debentures are redeemable by the
Trust, in whole, at any time after October 28, 1998 at 100%
of the principal amount plus accrued interest.
At December 2000 and 1999 the Trust had outstanding
$289,000 of 51⁄4% convertible subordinated debentures due
2002. The debentures which are convertible into shares of
beneficial interest at $30.625 were not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 and were not publicly distributed within
the United States.
The Trust is in compliance with the terms of these borrowings. No principal is due on these notes prior to maturity.
NOTE 5. SENIOR NOTES AND DEBENTURES
Unsecured senior notes and debentures at December 31, 2000
and 1999 consist of the following (in thousands):

8.875% Notes due January 15, 2000
8% Notes due April 21, 2002
6.74% Medium-Term Notes due March 10, 2004
6.625% Notes due December 1, 2005
6.99% Medium-Term Notes due March 10, 2006
6.82% Medium-Term Notes due August 1, 2027,
redeemable at par by holder August 1, 2007
7.48% Debentures due August 15, 2026,
redeemable at par by holder August 15, 2008
8.75% Notes due December 1, 2009

2000
—
25,000
39,500
40,000
40,500

1999
$100,000
25,000
39,500
40,000
40,500

40,000

40,000

50,000
175,000
_______________________
$410,000
_______________________

50,000
175,000
_______________________
$510,000
_______________________

$

On January 17, 2000 the Trust’s $100 million of 8.875%
Notes matured and were paid with borrowings from the Trust’s
syndicated credit facilities.
The loan agreements contain various covenants, including
limitations on the amount of debt and minimum debt service
coverage ratios. The Trust is in compliance with all covenants.
No principal is due on these notes prior to maturity.
In September 1998 the Trust filed a $500 million shelf
registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission which allows the issuance of debt securities,
preferred shares and common shares. As of December 31,
2000, $325 million is available under the shelf registration.
NOTE 6. DIVIDENDS
On November 2, 2000 the Trustees declared a quarterly cash
dividend of $.47 per common share, payable January 15, 2001
to common shareholders of record January 2, 2001. For the
years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, $.11, $.16,
and $.31 of dividends paid per common share, respectively,
represented a return of capital.
On November 2, 2000 the Trustees declared a quarterly
cash dividend of $.49687 per share on its Series A Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Shares, payable on January 31, 2001
to shareholders of record on January 15, 2001.
For the year ended December 31, 2000, $.04 of dividends
paid per common share and per preferred share represent a
capital gain. There were no capital gains in 1999 or 1998.
NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Pentagon Row is a mixed-use project with the retail component
being developed by the Trust and the residential component
being developed by an unrelated residential developer. In
October 2000 the general contractor on the project was
replaced by the Trust and the residential developer, because
of schedule delays and other events that caused the Trust and
the residential developer to conclude that the original contractor
was either unable or unwilling to comply with its contractual
obligations. The Trust and the residential developer filed suit
against the original contractor to recover damages that they
anticipate they will incur as a result of defaults under the contract. The original contractor filed a counter-claim against the
Trust and the residential developer for damages of $7 million
plus interest, attorneys’ fees and litigation costs. The Trust
believes that the counterclaim is generally without merit and
that the outcome of the counterclaim will not have a material
adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations
or on the project. Work continues under the direction of the
new general contractor and the Trust does not believe that
there will be any material impairment on the project as a
result of the schedule delays.
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In addition, the Trust is involved in various other lawsuits
and environmental matters arising in the normal course of
business. Management believes that such matters will not
have a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Trust.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Congressional Plaza
partnership agreement, in the event of the exercise of put
options by another partner, which are currently exercisable
and have no expiration date, the Trust would be required to
purchase a 37.5% interest at Congressional Plaza at its then
fair market value. Based on management’s current estimate
of fair market value, the Trust’s estimated liability upon exercise of the put option is approximately $27 million.
Under the terms of six other partnership agreements, if
certain leasing and revenue levels are obtained for the properties
owned by the partnerships, the limited partners may require
the Trust to purchase their partnership interests at a formula
price based upon net operating income. The purchase price
may be paid in cash or a limited number of common shares
of the Trust, at the election of the limited partners. In certain
of the partnerships if the limited partners do not redeem their
interest, the Trust may choose to purchase the limited partnership interests upon the same terms.
The limited partners of two partnerships, owning street
retail properties in southern California, have exercised their
rights under these agreements. The Trust purchased their
interests in March 2001 for approximately $18 million, approximately $7 million in common shares of the Trust and the balance in cash.
Under the terms of certain other partnership agreements,
the partners may exchange their 904,589 operating partnership
units for cash or exchange into the same number of common
shares of the Trust, at the option of the Trust. During the third
quarter of 2000 the Trust redeemed 100,000 operating units
for cash of $2.3 million
As of December 31, 2000 in connection with renovation
and development projects, the Trust has contractual obligations
of approximately $46 million.
The Trust is obligated under ground lease agreements on
several shopping centers requiring minimum annual payments
as follows (in thousands):
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$ 4,095
4,321
4,398
4,409
4,463
278,608
________________________
$300,294
________________________

NOTE 8. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
In May 1999, the Trust reorganized as a Maryland real estate
investment trust by amending and restating its declaration of
trust and bylaws. The Amended Declaration of Trust changed
the number of authorized shares of common and preferred
34

shares from unlimited to 100,000,000 and 15,000,000, respectively. In addition, all common shares of beneficial interest,
no par value, which were issued and outstanding were
changed to common shares of beneficial interest, $0.01
par value per share and all Series A Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Shares of beneficial interest, no par value, which
were issued and outstanding were changed to Series A
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of beneficial interest,
$0.01 par value per share.
On October 6, 1997 the Trust issued four million 7.95%
Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares at $25 per
share in a public offering, realizing cash proceeds of approximately $96.6 million after costs of $3.4 million. The Series A
Preferred Shares are not redeemable prior to October 6, 2002.
On or after that date, the Preferred Shares may be redeemed,
in whole or in part, at the option of the Trust, at a redemption
price of $25 per share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends.
The redemption price is payable solely out of proceeds from
the sale of other capital shares of the Trust. Dividends on the
Preferred Shares are payable quarterly in arrears on the last
day of January, April, July and October.
The Trust has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan, whereby
shareholders may use their dividends and make optional
cash payments to purchase shares. In 2000, 1999, and 1998,
153,713 shares, 165,770 shares, and 167,511 shares, respectively, were issued under the Plan.
In December 1999, the Trustees authorized a share
repurchase program for calendar year 2000 of up to an aggregate of 4 million of the Trust’s common shares. A total of
1,325,900 shares were repurchased at a cost of $25.2 million.
The Trust does not expect to repurchase shares in 2001.
In 2000, 270,809 common shares were awarded to the
Trust’s president and other key employees under various
incentive compensation programs designed to directly link a
significant portion of their current and long term compensation
to the prosperity of the Trust and its shareholders. The shares
vest over terms from 3 to 8 years.
In 1999, 65,660 common shares were awarded, and
5,006 shares were forfeited and retired, to the Trust’s president and other key employees under various incentive compensation programs. Fifteen thousand shares vested upon
award, and the balance vest over terms from 5 to 13 years.
In 1998, 576,055 common shares, of which 35,000 were
issued from treasury shares, were awarded to the Trust’s president and certain other officers under various incentive compensation programs. Ten thousand shares vested upon award,
491,055 shares vest over terms from 5 to 13 years, and 75,000
shares vest upon the obtainment of certain performance criteria.
In January 1994 under the terms of the 1993 Long Term
Incentive Plan, an officer of the Trust purchased 40,000 common shares at $25 per share with the assistance of a $1.0 million loan from the Trust. The loan, which has a term of 12 years
and a current balance of $562,500, bears interest at 6.24%.
Forgiveness of up to 75% of the loan is subject to the future

performance of the Trust. One eighth of the loan was forgiven
on January 31, 1995 and an additional one sixteenth has been
forgiven each January 31 since then as certain performance
criteria of the Trust were met.
In January 1991 the Trustees adopted the Federal Realty
Investment Trust Share Purchase Plan. Under the terms of
this plan, officers and certain employees of the Trust purchased
446,000 common shares at $15.125 per share with the assistance
of loans of $6.7 million from the Trust. Originally, the Plan
called for one sixteenth of the loan to be forgiven each year
for eight years, as long as the participant was still employed by
the Trust. The loans for all participants, but two, were modified
in 1994 to extend the term an additional four years and to tie
forgiveness in 1995 and thereafter to certain performance criteria of the Trust. One sixteenth of the loan has been forgiven
during each year of the plan. At December 31, 2000 the Trust
has outstanding purchase loans to participants of $1.4 million.
The purchase loans bear interest at 9.39%. The shares purchased under the plan may not be sold, pledged or assigned
until both the purchase and tax loans associated with the plan
are satisfied and the term has expired, without the consent
of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees.
Tax loans with a balance of $2.2 million in 2000, $1.3 million in 1999 and $1.1 million in 1998 have been made in connection with restricted share grants to the Trust’s President,
Chief Investment Officer and Chief Operating Officer and in
connection with the Share Purchase Plans. The loans, which
bear interest ranging from 6.36% to 9.39%, are due over periods ranging from 8 to 13 years from the date of the loan.
On April 13, 1999, the Shareholder Rights Plan adopted
in 1989 expired. On March 11, 1999 the Trust entered into
an Amended and Restated Rights Agreement with American
Stock Transfer and Trust Company, pursuant to which (i) the
expiration date of the Trust’s shareholder rights plan was
extended for an additional ten years to April 24, 2009, (ii) the
beneficial ownership percentage at which a person becomes
an “Acquiring Person” under the plan was reduced from 20%
to 15%, and (iii) certain other amendments were made.
NOTE 9. STOCK OPTION PLAN
The 1993 Long Term Incentive Plan (“Plan”) has been amended
to authorize the grant of options and other stock based awards
for up to 5.5 million shares. Options granted under the Plan
have ten year terms and vest in one to five years. Under the
Plan, on each annual meeting date during the term of the
Plan, each nonemployee Trustee will be awarded 2,500 options.
The option price to acquire shares under the 1993 Plan
and previous plans is required to be at least the fair market
value at the date of grant. As a result of the exercise of options,
the Trust had outstanding from its officers and employees notes
for $2.6 million, $3.6 million and $3.4 million at December 31,
2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The notes issued under
the 1993 Plan bear interest at the dividend rate on the date
of exercise divided by the purchase price of such shares. The

notes issued under the previous plans bear interest at the
lesser of (i) the Trust’s borrowing rate or (ii) the current indicated
annual dividend rate on the shares acquired pursuant to the
option, divided by the purchase price of such shares. The
notes are collateralized by the shares and are with recourse.
The loans have a term extending to the employee’s or officer’s
retirement date.
SFAS Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” requires pro forma information regarding net
income and earnings per share as if the Trust accounted for
its stock options under the fair value method of that Statement.
The fair value for options issued in 2000, 1999, and 1998 has
been estimated as $549,000, $434,000, and $2.6 million,
respectively, as of the date of grant, using a binomial model
with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2000,
1999 and 1998, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 5.2%,
5.4%, and 5.7%; volatility factors of the expected market
price of the Trust’s shares of 14%, 15%, and 19%; and a
weighted average expected life of the option of 5.7 years,
6.6 years, and 6.3 years.
Because option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions, such as the expected stock
price volatility, and because changes in these subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the
existing model may not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of its stock options.
For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair
value of the options are amortized to expense over the options’
vesting period. The pro forma information is as follows (in
thousands except for earnings per share):
Pro forma net income
Pro forma earnings per share, basic
Pro forma earnings per share, diluted

2000
$59,445
$ 1.33
$ 1.32

1999
$46,368
$ .97
$ .97

1998
$43,179
$ .90
$ .88

A summary of the Trust’s stock option activity for the
years ended December 31, is as follows:

January 1, 1998
Options granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited

Shares
Under
Option
2,848,342
1,293,500
(228,908)
(304,118)
_________________________

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$24.73
25.06
21.14
25.62

December 31, 1998
Options granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited

3,608,816
720,000
(52,667)
(380,635)
_________________________

25.00
21.12
20.73
25.29

December 31, 1999
Options granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited

3,895,514
737,500
(67,684)
(847,049)
_________________________

24.31
19.75
20.50
24.27

December 31, 2000

3,718,281
_________________________

23.46
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At December 31, 2000 and 1999, options for 2.3 million
and 1.9 million shares, respectively, were exercisable. The
average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at
December 31, 2000 and 1999 was 8.1 years and 6.7 years,
respectively. The weighted average grant date fair value per
option for options granted in 2000 and 1999 was $.72 and
$.65, respectively. The exercise price of options outstanding
at December 31, 2000 ranged from $18.00 per share to
$27.13 per share.
NOTE 10. SAVINGS AND RETIREMENT PLANS
The Trust has a savings and retirement plan in accordance
with the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Employees’ contributions range, at the discretion of
each employee, from 1% to 20% of compensation up to a
maximum of $10,500. Under the plan, the Trust, out of its
current net income, contributes 50% of each employee’s
first 5% of contributions. In addition, the Trust may make
discretionary contributions within the limits of deductibility
set forth by the Code. Employees of the Trust are immediately
eligible to become plan participants. Employees are not eligible
to receive matching contributions until their first anniversary
of employment. The Trust’s expense for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $216,000, $223,000
and $218,000, respectively.
A nonqualified deferred compensation plan for Trust officers
was established in 1994. The plan allows the officers to defer
future income until the earlier of age 65 or termination of
employment with the Trust. As of December 31, 2000, the Trust
is liable to participants for approximately $2.4 million under this
plan. Although this is an unfunded plan, the Trust has purchased
certain investments with which to match this obligation.
NOTE 11. INTEREST EXPENSE
The Trust incurred interest expense totaling $79.7 million,
$68.4 million and $60.2 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998,
respectively, of which $13.3 million, $6.9 million, and $5.1 million respectively, was capitalized. Interest paid was $83.1 million in 2000, $67.0 million in 1999, and $57.8 million in 1998.
NOTE 12. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
During 1999 while exploring strategic alternatives to maximize
shareholder value, the Trust considered spinning off certain
of its assets (primarily those related to the development and
operation of its main street retail program) in a taxable transaction to shareholders. Shortly thereafter, the remaining assets
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of the Trust were to be merged with another publicly traded
shopping center company in exchange for cash and stock consideration. On September 24, 1999, the Trust announced that
merger negotiations were terminated and that the spin-off
was being reevaluated.
In preparing for these transactions, the Trust incurred
expenses of approximately $2.8 million related to legal,
accounting, tax and other advisory services related to the
spin-off and the merger. Such costs have been expensed
and are reflected as administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
At September 30, 1998 the Trust recorded a $4.7 million
charge related to a comprehensive restructuring program, the
implementation of which was begun during the fourth quarter
of 1998. All costs related to the reorganization have been
expended as of December 31, 2000.
NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Under a Restricted Share Agreement designed to link his
compensation with the prosperity of the shareholders, the
Trust’s Chief Executive Officer elected to accept stock in lieu
of cash for both his 2000 bonus and his 2001 salary. As a
result, in 2001, 35,000 common shares were awarded to the
Chief Executive Officer in lieu of his 2001 cash salary and
26,869 shares were awarded in lieu of his 2000 cash bonus.
The shares vest at the end of five years if the Chief Executive
Officer is still employed by the Trust.
Pursuant to the 1999 Incentive Bonus Plan, vice presidents and certain key employees receive part of their 2000
bonus in Federal Realty shares which vest over three years.
Consequently, on February 14, 2001, 23,390 shares were
awarded under this plan.
On February 16, 2001, the Trust bought the land underlying the capital lease obligation, thereby, terminating the
capital lease on Brick Plaza in Brick, New Jersey for $28 million. Concurrent with this transaction, the mortgage note
receivable of $3.2 million owed to the Trust by the lessor
was repaid.
NOTE 14. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Trust traditionally operated its business as a single business segment. During the fourth quarter of 1998, however,
the Trust completed a comprehensive restructuring program
which, among other things, divided its portfolio of assets into
three geographic operating regions: Northeast, Mid-Atlantic
and West.

A summary of the Trust’s operations by geographic region is presented below (in thousands):
2000
Rental income
Other income

Northeast

Mid-Atlantic

West

$113,078

$114,371

$ 33,235

Other
$

—

Consolidated
$ 260,684

4,215

3,900

2,950

—

11,065

Rental expense

(23,261)

(24,766)

(8,253)

—

(56,280)

Real estate tax

(14,347)
__________________________

(9,159)
__________________________

(3,114)
__________________________

—

(26,620)
_______________________________

79,685

84,346

24,818

Interest income

—

—

—

7,532

7,532

Interest expense

—

—

—

(66,418)

(66,418)

Net operating income

Administrative expense

188,849

—

—

—

(13,318)

(13,318)

Depreciation and Amortization

(25,169)
__________________________

(21,915)
__________________________

(5,242)
__________________________

(933)
_________________________

(53,259)
_______________________________

Income before investors’ share of operations
and gain on sale of real estate

$__________________________
54,516

$__________________________
62,431

$ 19,576
__________________________

$(73,137)
_________________________

$_______________________________
63,386

Capital expenditures

$__________________________
38,696

$__________________________
60,783

$ 83,205
__________________________

$_________________________
—

$_______________________________
182,684

Real estate assets

$754,048
__________________________

$720,208
__________________________

$380,657
__________________________

$_________________________
—

$1,854,913
_______________________________

1999

Northeast

Mid-Atlantic

West

Other

Consolidated

Rental Income

$102,452

$111,624

$ 31,757

Other income

$

—

$ 245,833

5,672

3,903

1,656

—

11,231

Rental expense

(20,702)

(25,096)

(7,879)

—

(53,677)

Real estate tax

(13,146)
__________________________

(9,006)
__________________________

(2,869)
__________________________

—

(25,021)
_______________________________

74,276

81,425

22,665

Interest income

—

—

—

7,649

7,649

Interest expense

—

—

—

(61,492)

(61,492)

Net operating income

Administrative expense

178,366

—

—

—

(15,120)

(15,120)

Depreciation and Amortization

(22,648)
__________________________

(22,473)
__________________________

(4,101)
__________________________

(789)
_________________________

(50,011)
_______________________________

Income before investors’ share of operations
and loss on sale of real estate

$__________________________
51,628

$__________________________
58,952

$ 18,564
__________________________

$(69,752)
_________________________

$_______________________________
59,392

Capital expenditures

$__________________________
32,547

$__________________________
26,444

$ 62,512
__________________________

$
—
_________________________

$_______________________________
121,503

Real estate assets

$715,772
__________________________

$663,019
__________________________

$342,668
__________________________

$
—
_________________________

$1,721,459
_______________________________

1998

Northeast

Mid-Atlantic

West

Other

Consolidated

Rental income

$ 93,632

$103,676

$ 24,878

5,768

3,637

942

—

10,347

Rental expense

(20,259)

(22,826)

(6,405)

—

(49,490)

Real estate tax

(12,745)
__________________________

(8,422)
__________________________

(2,104)
__________________________

—

(23,271)
_______________________________

66,396

76,065

17,311

Interest income

—

—

—

5,945

5,945

Interest expense

—

—

—

(55,125)

(55,125)

Administrative expense

—

—

—

(11,796)

(11,796)

Reorganization expense

—

—

—

(4,665)

(4,665)

Depreciation and Amortization

(20,224)
__________________________

(22,218)
__________________________

(2,650)
__________________________

(955)
_________________________

(46,047)
_______________________________

Income before investors’ share of operations
and gain on sale of real estate

$__________________________
46,172

$__________________________
53,847

$ 14,661
__________________________

$(66,596)
_________________________

$_______________________________
48,084

Capital expenditures

$__________________________
56,629

$__________________________
60,687

$ 76,414
__________________________

$
—
_________________________

$_______________________________
193,730

Real estate assets

$684,318
__________________________

$676,842
__________________________

$280,976
__________________________

$
—
_________________________

$1,642,136
_______________________________

Other income

Net operating income

$

—

$ 222,186

159,772

There are no transactions between geographic areas.
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NOTE 15. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)
The following summary represents the results of operations for each quarter in 2000 and 1999 (in thousands, except per share data):
First
Second
Third
Fourth
2000
Quarter
Quarter
Quarter
Quarter
Revenue
Net income available for common shares

$69,104
12,151

$68,806
16,087(1)

$68,581

$72,790

12,433

11,902

Earnings per common share—basic

.31

.42

.32

.31

Earnings per common share—diluted

.31

.41

.32

.31

1999

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Revenue

$63,583

$64,195

$67,255

$69,680

12,198

11,901

Net income available for common shares

11,566

4,828(2)

Earnings per common share—basic

.29

.12

.31

.30

Earnings per common share—diluted(3)

.29

.12

.30

.30

(1)

Net income includes a $3.7 million gain on sale of real estate ($.10 gain per share—basic and $.09 gain per share—diluted).

(2)

Net income includes a $7.1 million loss on sale of real estate ($.18 loss per share—basic and $.17 loss per share—diluted).

(3)

The sum of quarterly earnings per common share—diluted, $1.01 differs from the annual earnings per common share—diluted, $1.02, due to rounding.
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Trustees and Shareholders
of Federal Realty Investment Trust:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Federal Realty Investment Trust (a Maryland real
estate investment trust) and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2000 and 1999 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, common shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,
2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Trust’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Federal Realty Investment Trust
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2000
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP
Vienna, Virginia
February 13, 2001
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FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST
Corporate Information

CORPORATE OFFICE
1626 East Jefferson Street
Rockville, MD 20852-4041
(301) 998-8100
(301) 998-3700 fax

GENERAL COUNSEL
Hogan & Hartson, L.L.P.
Washington, D.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Arthur Andersen, LLP
Vienna, VA

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
40 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005
(212) 936-5100
(800) 937-5449
www.amstock.com

COMMON STOCK LISTING
New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: FRT

SEC FORM 10-K
Copies of Federal Realty’s Annual Report filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K are
available, without charge, upon written request to the
Investor Relations department at the Trust.

MEMBERSHIPS
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
International Council of Shopping Centers
Association of Foreign Investors in U.S. Real Estate
Urban Land Institute

ANNUAL MEETING
Federal Realty Investment Trust will hold its Annual Shareholder
Meeting at 10:00 a.m. on May 2, 2001 at Woodmont Country
Club, 1201 Rockville Pike, Rockville, Maryland.
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DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
AND SHARE PURCHASE PLAN
The Trust offers a Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase
Plan (DRP) which enables its shareholders to automatically
reinvest dividends as well as make voluntary cash payments
towards the purchase of additional shares. Information and
enrollment forms regarding the Plan and automatic cash investment can be obtained by calling (888) 378-8727. Shareholders
may enroll on-line at www.amstock.com.

DIRECT DEPOSIT
Federal Realty now offers shareholders direct deposit of dividends. Interested shareholders should call (888) 378-8727 to
request the appropriate enrollment forms. Shareholders may
sign up on-line at www.amstock.com.

VOICE AND FAX ON DEMAND
As a service to our shareholders and other interested parties,
copies of the Company’s recent news releases can be
transmitted, at no charge, via fax by calling Federal Realty
Shareholder Direct at (888) 378-8727. This service also allows
callers to hear recordings of earnings and dividend releases,
current news and shareholder programs, retrieve stock quotes,
and can connect callers directly to American Stock Transfer or
to Federal Realty’s Investor Relations department.

INTERNET
www.federalrealty.com
Visitors to the site can search for and download Securities
and Exchange Commission filings, review Federal Realty’s
Dividend Reinvestment Plan, obtain current stock quotes and
read recent press releases. Visitors can also request printed
materials or sign up to receive news by e-mail.

E-MAIL
You may communicate directly with Federal Realty’s Investor
Relations department via electronic mail at: IR@federalrealty.com
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